
Argyll and Bute Council 
 Comhairle Earra-Ghàidheal Agus Bhòid  
 
Executive Director:  Douglas Hendry 

 

 
Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT 

Tel:  01546 602127  Fax:  01546 604435 
DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD 

5 February 2024 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
A meeting of the ARGYLL AND BUTE LOCAL REVIEW BODY will be held BY MICROSOFT 
TEAMS on MONDAY, 12 FEBRUARY 2024 at 12:30 PM, which you are requested to attend. 
 
 

Douglas Hendry 
Executive Director 

 

 
BUSINESS 

 

 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 3. CONSIDER NOTICE OF REVIEW REQUEST: LAND TO THE NORTH OF 
BALLYHAUGH OUTDOOR CENTRE, ISLE OF COLL, PA78 6TB (REF:  
23/0009/LRB)  

  (a) Notice of Review and Supporting Documentation (Pages 3 - 158) 

  (b) Comments from Interested Parties (Pages 159 - 186) 

 
Argyll and Bute Local Review Body 

 
 Councillor Kieron Green (Chair) Councillor Mark Irvine
 Councillor Peter Wallace 
   
 
 Contact: Lynsey Innis, Senior Committee Assistant  Tel:  01546 604338 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 3 Agenda Item 3a



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Site Description: The proposed development site, situated north of the Ballyhaugh 

Hebridean Outdoor Centre on the Isle of Coll, Argyll, and Bute, is a greenfield site 

characterized by its unique topography. Located at the base of a 50-meter hill, it 

offers distinct environmental advantages, notably protection from northerly and 

easterly winter winds. 

Development Proposal: The planned farmworkers dwelling, encompassing three 

parking spaces and a new access point, has been meticulously designed to comply 

with both local and national planning guidelines. The proposal signifies a 

commitment to sustainable development within an area designated as 'Countryside'. 

GROUNDS FOR APPEAL 

1. Policy Conflict and Resolution: 

• NPF4 Policy 9: While the proposal appears to conflict with NPF4 Policy 

9, we argue it constitutes an "exceptional case" due to the site's unique 

location and topographical features. 

• LDP and LDP2 Consideration: While not formally adopted, the Local 

Authority’s recent publication of LDP2 proposals is a significant 

material planning consideration. Our client’s site is situated in a 

designated 'Countryside Area', aligning with LDP2's focus on 

sustainable development in rural settings. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9



2. Legal and Policy Framework: 

• The primacy of NPF4: NPF4, as a national policy, overrides local 

development plans in decision-making processes. Our appeal 

challenges the refusal's alignment with this legal precedence. 

• Comprehensive Policy Analysis:  A detailed analysis is required to 

determine if the decision to refuse the application adequately 

considered the holistic approach mandated by NPF4, as emphasised in 

the Chief Planner's guidance. 

DETAILED ARGUMENT 

1. Holistic Application of NPF4 

• The Chief Planner’s directive states that NPF4 policies should not be 

isolated to justify planning decisions. The refusal suggests a selective 

interpretation of these policies, which is inconsistent with the holistic 

approach required. 

 

2. Alignment with NPF4 and LDP2 Objectives: 

• The development aligns with the overarching objectives of NPF4 and 

emerging policies within LDP2, focusing on sustainable development 

and ecological preservation. 

 

3. Inadequate Consideration of Material Considerations: 

• The refusal indicates a potential oversight in considering the chief 

planner's guidance and the emerging LDP2 policies. This oversight may 

render the decision legally questionable. 

 

4. Possibility of Judicial Review: 

• Given these legal concerns, the decision may be subject to judicial 

review, focusing on the compliance of the decision-making process 

with policy interpretation and material considerations. 

Page 10



CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION 

The refusal of the proposed development raises substantial legal questions 

regarding the application of NPF4 in conjunction with LDP and LDP2. Our analysis 

suggests that a more comprehensive approach, as advised by the Chief Planner, 

could lead to an alternative outcome. We propose reconsidering the decision, 

ensuring it aligns with the legal and policy frameworks governing planning decisions. 

 

Response to Landscape Impact Concerns: 

• Architectural Adaptation: The design of the proposed dwelling will be 

sensitively adapted to complement the natural landscape. 

• Sustainability: The development emphasises eco-friendly design and 

energy efficiency. 

• Economic and Social Benefits: The development is projected to impact 

the local economy and address housing needs positively. 

• Respect for Rural Evolution: The proposal is designed to balance 

development with conservation, respecting the changing nature of rural 

communities. 

In summation, our appeal presents a balanced approach that respects the area's 

character and the broader community interest. We advocate for a decision 

harmonising preservation with progress, enhancing community well-being and 

environmental sustainability. 

 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

Thomas Cochrane BSc. (Hons) HND, CPC 
Planning Services UK 

The Circle 
69-71 Aberdalgie Road 
Easterhouse, Glasgow 

G34 9HJ 
 

Page 11



APPENDIX 

 

i. Ballyhough Farm, encompassing a significant expanse of land, is home to an 

impressive livestock collection comprising 120 sheep and 35 cattle, alongside 

a distinguished herd of native Luing cattle. Under the astute management of 

Allan Brodie, the farm has been operated as an efficient satellite extension of 

Ballard Farm. Project Trust initiated this strategic move following the 

acquisition of the sole residential property on the premises roughly four 

decades after the passing of Alex Conway. Mr. Brodie has successfully 

integrated and consistently complied with many designated regulations and 

standards in the ensuing years, further enhancing the farm's operational 

excellence. 

Page 12



ii. The agricultural operations of the farms are now jointly managed through a 

partnership between Allan Brodie 

and Juliet Conway, Alex Conway's 

daughter. Juliet’s partner, John 

Morrison, predominantly 

undertakes the day-to-day farm 

work. The couple resides in a 

quaint cottage in Uig, a mere 

three miles from Ballyhough, 

where they raise their two children enrolled in the nearby primary school, 

currently educating a small cohort of only five children.  

 

iii. Juliet Conway has deep-rooted connections with Ballyhough, having spent her 

childhood there until her teenage years. The farm holds historical significance 

for her family, as it has been maintained by her mother’s lineage for several 

generations, embedding a rich familial legacy within its lands. 

 

iv. The Ballard and Ballyhough Farms, located two miles apart and connected by 

the rugged CO16/C474 core path, demonstrate a commitment to efficiency 

and environmental stewardship. While Ballyhough Farm lacks a traditional 

farmhouse, it is fully equipped with comprehensive livestock management 

facilities, including a fank and pens, which play a pivotal role in routine 

agricultural processes such as sheep shearing, veterinary care, and cow 

calving. 

 

v. During the demanding calving season, John Morrison skilfully manages 

multiple daily trips using a quad bike. In intricate calving needs, his dedication 

extends to overnight stays at the shed. A strategically placed mobile caravan 

was introduced near the shed last winter to facilitate these operations, 

complementing his daily silage distribution runs with a tractor and trailer. This 

Page 13



adaptive approach exemplifies the farm's operational resilience and 

strengthens the case for environmentally conscious development. 

 

vi. The farm has conducted a thorough carbon audit in alignment with its 

sustainability ethos, underscoring its commitment to reducing carbon 

emissions. Despite the high petrol costs for quad bike operations, the farm's 

proactive strategies aim to enhance its economic viability while advancing its 

sustainability objectives, ensuring a balanced approach to modern, 

environmentally conscious farming practices. 

 

vii. The selection of the proposed site, although situated outside the designated 

development area, was meticulously made due to its strategic orientation 

away from the Project Trust and its two turbines and its proximity to the SSSI. 

Several key factors influenced this decision. Firstly, as indicated on the left, its 

location in a rocky area is 

ideally suited for the 

intended purpose. 

Secondly, the site is 

conveniently accessible 

via an existing track 

leading to a former farm 

quarry, which enhances 

logistical efficiency.  

 

viii. Finally, its closeness to the existing fank and electricity supply streamlines 

operations and reduces the need for extensive infrastructural development, 

aligning with practical and environmental considerations. This thoughtful site 

selection process underscores a commitment to balancing development 

needs with environmental sensitivity and operational practicality. 

 

ix.  

 

x.  

Page 14



xi. The design chosen for the application, notably the White House design from 

Heb Homes, has been carefully selected to harmonise with the architectural 

style of the former farmhouse at Ballyhough. This decision ensures that the 

new structure seamlessly integrates into the existing landscape, maintaining 

the area's aesthetic continuity and natural beauty. The design strategy 

prioritises blending the property with its surroundings, mitigating potential 

visual discordance.  

 

xii. In addition to aesthetic considerations, there is a strong emphasis on building 

an energy-efficient property aligned with a low-impact lifestyle. This approach 

reflects a commitment to sustainability and environmental responsibility. 

Given the thoughtful design and sustainability objectives, it is challenging to 

understand how this property could be perceived as having an 'unacceptable 

or materially harmful impact on the wider landscape'. The design and 

construction plans are meticulously crafted to respect and enhance the 

natural setting, ensuring a minimal ecological footprint and preserving the 

landscape's integrity. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



P
age 23



Page 24



Page 25



P
age 26



Page 27



P
age 28



P
age 29



Page 30



Page 31



P
age 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Labour Report – Allan C Brodie – Ballyhough 

 

 

SAC Consulting, Stirling  

Summary 

• This report has been prepared for the purpose of providing agricultural justification 

to support a planning application to Argyll and Bute council.  

 

• Ballyhough Farm extends to 91.85 ha of ground and has been run as a satellite 

farm to Ballard farm two miles away along a rough track. 

 

• The couple who work the farm currently, Ms Conway and Mr Morrison, live in a 

small cottage at Uig, three miles away from Ballyhough as there is no farmhouse 

at Ballyhough and so Mr Morrison, the farm manager, has had to stay overnight in 

a shed during calving if there are issues. 

 

• The business puts 35 Luing x Simmental cows to the bull, caving in the spring with 

most calves being sold store in the autumn. 

 

• The unit also has 120 Cheviot cross breeding ewes/gimmers, plus hoggs. 

 

• It is essential that there is someone present on the unit to ensure animal welfare 

legislation and cross-compliance measures are being met. 

 

• The frequent trips to the farm mean there are high fuel emissions, contributing to 

the farm’s carbon footprint.  

 

• Adding accommodation would help to mitigate the animal welfare needs, the farm’s 

carbon footprint and the lack of any housing nearby. Therefore this illustrates a 

clear agriculture justification for the proposed dwelling. 

Page 59



Labour Report – Allan C Brodie – Ballyhough 

 

 

SAC Consulting, Oban  Page 1 

1 Introduction 

Allan Brodie and Juliet Conway approached SAC consulting for a report to access the 

labour requirement of the agricultural enterprise and review the suitability of an 

agricultural justification for a dwelling on the land at Ballyhough on the Isle of Coll. 

 

The purpose of this report is to: 

• Review the farming activities of the business and assess the annual labour 

requirements. 

• Outline and review other issues relevant to the need for housing on the farm.  

 

The report deals only with agricultural issues affecting the justification for a planning 

application to be considered.  

Page 60



Labour Report – Allan C Brodie – Ballyhough 

 

 

SAC Consulting, Oban  Page 2 

2 Background 

Ballyhough has been run as a satellite farm to Ballard farm by Allan Brodie. The sole 

house on the land was sold to Project Trust following the death of Alec Conway (Mr 

Brodie’s uncle and business partner) approximately 40 years ago. Mr Brodie has since 

travelled daily between the two holdings. 

 

The farms are now worked in partnership between Allan Brodie and Juliet Conway, 

Alec’s daughter, along with her partner, John Morrison who acts as the farm manager. 

Mr Morrisonis now doing most of the farm work, as Mr Brodie has reached retirement 

age. 

 

Mr Morrison and Ms Conway currently live in a small cottage at Uig, three miles away 

from Ballyhough, with their two children, who attend the local primary school (a roll of 

five children). It is hoped the children will both continue to live and work on Coll when 

they are older, in line with the aspirations of the Islands Bill.  

 

The farm at Ballard (where Mr Brodie lives with his wife) and Ballyhough are two 

miles apart, through a rough sandy track. There is no farmhouse at Ballyhough, 

though there is a livestock fank and pens, which are regularly used for sheep 

shearing, vet visits and cows calving.  

 

The farming policy is based around breeding sheep and cattle, mainly producing store 

lambs and calves for sale. 

 

The agriculturally active land extends to a total of 91.85 ha - as claimed in the annual 

IACS forms. 

 

The labour unit assessment is based on average standard man hours as laid down by 

the UK Farm Classification Document (Oct 2014).  These standards are measured 

against the projected agricultural activity on the unit. 

 

Page 61



Labour Report – Allan C Brodie – Ballyhough 

 

 

SAC Consulting, Oban  Page 3 

3 Farming System 

The farming system comprise of a spring calving suckler herd, and a sheep flock 

producing store lambs across 91.85ha of rough grazing region 2 ground. 

  

The business puts 35 Luing xSimmental cows to the bull, running as a spring calving 

system, with heifers having their first calf at around 36 months. The first cow calves 

down around February each year, with calving running until June, or sometimes July.  

Calves are sold as store at both the spring and Christmas sales in Oban and Stirling. 

 

Currently, during calving time, Mr Morrison must make 3-4 trips per day on quad bike. 

If there are any issues, he must stay at the shed overnight. as there is no 

accommodation on the farm. 

 

The only cattle that are housed are cows in poor condition, as well as calves who come 

in in November in preparation for sales. In addition, later calvers come in from around 

November to March. Other cattle are wintered outside, and need supplemented daily 

with silage from December until late May. Again, this requires Mr Morrison to make 

the trip in inclement winter weather to feed stock. The frequent travel is inefficient use 

of the farmer’s time. 

 

It should be noted that the cattle bring significant biodiversity benefits to the ground, 

and so during the summer months Mr Morrison must make the trip to Ballyhough to 

rotate cattle. Without grazing or with too low a grazing intensity, it is not possible to 

maintain some wader populations due to the indirect effects of grazing on habitat 

quality. Conservation grazing is particularly important in this context due to the species 

rich machair on the farm. 

 

The unit also has 120 Cheviot cross breeding ewes/gimmers, plus hoggs (which are 

wintered at home). Replacement ewes are kept from females born with fresh genetics 

being introduced through the purchase of new tups. New tups are now purchased from 

Lairg as the Cheviot type there tend to be hardier and therefore more suited to island 

weather on Coll, highlighting Mr Morrison’s attention to detail and commitment to the 

farming system at Ballyhough. 

Page 62



Labour Report – Allan C Brodie – Ballyhough 

 

 

SAC Consulting, Oban  Page 4 

 

Ewes are lambed inside for welfare reasons, in order to mitigate against predation 

from ravens, with lambs being sold store in the autumn. This requires Mr Morrison to 

be present to check stock several times during the day and night over the lambing 

period from early April through to mid May. 

 

Sheep are supplemented with blocks and concentrates over winter, requiring Mr 

Morrison to make the trip to Ballyhough to put blocks out and concentrate feeding as 

required to ensure the nutrition of the breeding ewe is good enough for the ewe to 

raise a healthy lamb. 

 

Both cattle and sheep are on the rough grazing and machair all year 

 

The family have a real passion for farming. In fact, Ms Conway lived at Ballyhough 

until she was a teenager. Her maternal ancestors have lived on the farm for 

generations.  

 

Farming in such a remote location as Coll is very labour intensive, with stock needing 

constant close supervision and management 365 days a year. Not only for the 

productivity and viability of the business but also for the welfare of the animals which 

needs to be kept at a high standard.  

 

 

 

Page 63



Labour Report – Allan C Brodie – Ballyhough 

 

 

SAC Consulting, Oban  Page 5 

4 Labour Requirement 

The standard work capacity is taken as 1900 hours per man year as revised by 

SGRPID in 2006.  This is calculated on the assumption that a worker would work 237.5 

standard working days per year to include an element of overtime as well as 

considering public holidays, weekends, and illness.  A standard man day is taken as 

8 hours and is the widely accepted standard in agriculture. 

 

The standards are set for the UK as a whole and do not consider location.  As the Isle 

of Coll is particularly remote, there are agricultural activities that are not considered in 

these standards. 

 

Using the SGRPID DEFRA and DANI agreed standard Labour Requirement as 

published in the SAC Farm Management Handbook (October 2021) the agricultural 

activities carried out by the farming business of Mr Morrison, the farm manager, can 

be calculated – see Appendix 1.   

 

The calculation shows a total labour requirement of 2059.78 hours in total for 

agricultural activities carried out on the farm on an annual basis.  This equates to 1.08 

FTE labour units.  

 

The stated figures show that the labour requirements for this business are extensive. 

It should be noted that no time has been allocated for bookkeeping, quality assurance 

compliance and other general paperwork.  
 

Page 64



Labour Report – Allan C Brodie – Ballyhough 

 

 

SAC Consulting, Oban  Page 6 

5 Need for On-Farm Accommodation 

 
Animal welfare 
 
Livestock require management and supervision especially in systems such as remote 

Island farming as any drop in production can affect the profitability, and indeed viability, 

of the business which like many other forms of agriculture run on very tight profit 

margins.  

 

When dealing with livestock, welfare requirements are of paramount importance.  

Without accommodation, a farmer / crofter / stockman is prevented from fulfilling their 

welfare obligations. This is especially important during: 

 

• Lambing and calving time when stock need to be checked several times during 

the day and night to deal with any lambing/calving difficulties and sickly stock 

are dealt with quickly.  

 

• The winter months when livestock are required to be fed supplementation daily, 

as the nutritional value of the grazing has dropped below the minimum required 

to maintain stock in a healthy condition. 

 

As stewards of the countryside farmers and crofters are responsible for sustaining and 

maintaining the land to provide a safe and clean environment. 

 

Land and stock management factors are more challenging in a remote island location.  

On the Isle of Coll, there is a serious issue with the availability of skilled labour to help 

in an emergency (or even for routine work when the farmer/crofter is off farm for 

business or holiday). For a business to be resilient there is a need for back up skilled 

labour to be available at short notice. 

 

It is essential that there is someone present on the unit in order to ensure animal 

welfare legislation and cross-compliance measures are being met: 

 

Page 65



Labour Report – Allan C Brodie – Ballyhough 

 

 

SAC Consulting, Oban  Page 7 

Schedule 1, paragraph 1 of the Welfare of Farmed Animals (Scotland) 

Regulations 2000 states that:  

 

• All animals must be cared for by a sufficient number of staff who possess 

the appropriate ability knowledge and professional competence. 

 

and Schedule 1 paragraph 2 requires that: 

 

• All animals kept in husbandry systems in which their welfare depends on 

frequent human attention must be thoroughly inspected at least once a 

day to check that they are in a state of well-being 

 

The sheep flock and beef herd come with constraints and needs, especially at lambing 

and calving time when staff must be on call and supervising at all times to ensure 

animal welfare standards are maintained. The lambing and calving periods are very 

intensive and 24hrs supervision is a must (especially for indoor lambing) to maintain 

animal welfare and business viability. This is in addition to the requirement for an 

enhanced level of shepherding to be present at lambing time to ensure losses to 

predators such as ravens are minimised. 

 

Carbon Emissions  
 
As well as the substantial cost of petrol to operate the quad bike (currently, at a cost 

of £2.19 per litre), the farm has carried out a carbon audit and is keen to reduce its 

carbon emissions in line with Government aspirations and the future conditionality of 

subsidy payments. 

 

The completed carbon audit highlighted that fuel use across the business was 

comparatively higher than benchmarks (1.16 compared to 0.33 kgCO2e/kg dwt) due 

to the 3-4x daily quad trip between holdings and from Mr Morrison and Ms Conway’s 

home in Uig to Ballyhough. To reduce the business emissions, reducing fuel use is 

of critical importance. 

 

Page 66



Labour Report – Allan C Brodie – Ballyhough 

 

 

SAC Consulting, Oban  Page 8 

Lack of alternative accommodation  
 

There is currently no accommodation at Ballyhough and so Mr Morrison has had to 

stay in the shed overnight, or more recently a caravan, during the calving period if any 

issues arise. 

 

Security  
 
Rural and farm related crime has been on the increase across Scotland with 

opportunist and organised theft of machinery, equipment, stock, and fuel becoming a 

real concern. It is important that staff are always present to act as a deterrent and be 

able to act upon any occurrences. 

 

Dog worrying on farms is an increasing issue which is detrimental to animal welfare, 

highly distressing for those involved and a financial burden. A dwelling on site would 

mean that dog worrying incidents at any time of day can be responded to rapidly. As 

can gates being left open by walkers leading to livestock straying on public roads. 

Page 67



Labour Report – Allan C Brodie – Ballyhough 

 

 

SAC Consulting, Oban  Page 9 

6 Conclusion 

The above calculation shows that 1.08 Full Time Equivalent (FTE) labour units are 

required to run this unit. 

 

The remote and island location of this farm and its welfare responsibilities will add 

pressure to labour requirement in addition to the standard figures calculated above. 

The welfare responsibilities in particular should not be underestimated.  

 

It is therefore highly recommended that planning permission be granted on the basis 

of operational needs. 

 

It has been demonstrated that the business has a high labour requirement. This 

coupled to the growing rural crime and security concerns, the animal welfare needs, 

and the lack of affordable housing nearby therefore illustrates a clear agriculture 

justification for a house to be built.  

Page 68



Labour Report – Allan C Brodie – Ballyhough 

 

 

SAC Consulting, Oban  Page 10 

Appendix 1 

Calculation of Standard Hours Worked 

 
 
Standard labour hours are taken from SAC Farm Management Handbook 2021/22 
page 390 

Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Consultation Request Notification 
Scottish Water 

 
 
Planning Authority Name Argyll and Bute Council 
Response Date 30 Nov 2022 
Planning Authority Reference 22/02078/PPP 
Nature of Proposal 
(Description) 

Site for the erection of dwellinghouse to be used in association 
with farming business 

Site String Land North Of Ballyhough Outdoor Centre 
Isle Of Coll 
Argyll And Bute 

Site Gazetteer UPRN 000125062436 
Proposal Location Easting 117435 
Proposal Location Northing 758145 
Area of application site (Ha)  
Clarification of Specific reasons 
for Consultation 

Standard Consultation 

Development Hierarchy Level  
Supporting Documentation Please enter Our Ref (at the top of this letter) into the search 

field of Argyll and Bute Council’s Public Access system at: 
 
https://publicaccess.argyll-bute.gov.uk/online-
applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application 
 
Then navigate through to view the associated document. 

List of Available Supporting 
Documentation 

 

Offline Documents available? N 
Date of Validation by Planning 
Authority (MONTH) 

9 Nov 2022 

Date of Consultation (MONTH)  
Governing Legislation Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 
Consultation Type Planning Application 
Consultation Stage Planning Permission in Principle 
Is this a re-consultation of an 
existing application? 

N 

EIA Required? N 
EIA Regulations  
Distance from Trunk Road 
Centre Line 

 

New/ Amended Vehicle Access 
to/ from Public Road? 

See application Drawings 

Does the application conform 
with the Local Plan 

 

Additional Comments relating to 
the Local Plan 

 

Transport Assessment or Travel 
Plan 

 

Applicant Name Mr Allan  Brodie 
Applicant Organisation Name  

Page 89

https://publicaccess.argyll-bute.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
https://publicaccess.argyll-bute.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application


Applicant Address String Ballard Farm 
Land North of Ballyhough 
Outdoor Centre 
Isle of Coll 
Scotland 
PA78 6TB 
 

Agent Name TmC Planning And Property Development Ltd 
Agent Organisation Name Philip Landa 
Agent Address String Suite 1:12 Stadium House     

Alderstone Road  
Livingston  
Scotland  
EH54 7DN 
 

Agent Phone Number planning-applications@tmcplanning.co.uk 
Agent Email Address  
PA Office Planning Services, Municipal Buildings Albany Street Oban 

PA34 4AW 
Case Officer Allocated To Area Office 
PA Office Phone Number 01546 605518 
PA Office email address  

planning.olandi@argyll-bute.gov.uk 
 

PA Response to  

planning.olandi@argyll-bute.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 90



Consultation Request Notification 
NatureScot -  ARGYLL AND OUTER HEBRIDES 

 
 
Planning Authority Name Argyll and Bute Council 
Response Date 30 Nov 2022 
Planning Authority Reference 22/02078/PPP 
Nature of Proposal 
(Description) 

Site for the erection of dwellinghouse to be used in association 
with farming business 

Site String Land North Of Ballyhough Outdoor Centre 
Isle Of Coll 
Argyll And Bute 

Site Gazetteer UPRN 000125062436 
Proposal Location Easting 117435 
Proposal Location Northing 758145 
Area of application site (Ha)  
Clarification of Specific reasons 
for Consultation 

Standard Consultation 
Within SSSI 

Development Hierarchy Level  
Supporting Documentation Please enter Our Ref (at the top of this letter) into the search 

field of Argyll and Bute Council’s Public Access system at: 
 
https://publicaccess.argyll-bute.gov.uk/online-
applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application 
 
Then navigate through to view the associated document. 

List of Available Supporting 
Documentation 

 

Offline Documents available? N 
Date of Validation by Planning 
Authority (MONTH) 

9 Nov 2022 

Date of Consultation (MONTH)  
Governing Legislation Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 
Consultation Type Planning Application 
Consultation Stage Planning Permission in Principle 
Is this a re-consultation of an 
existing application? 

N 

EIA Required? N 
EIA Regulations  
Distance from Trunk Road 
Centre Line 

 

New/ Amended Vehicle Access 
to/ from Public Road? 

See application Drawings 

Does the application conform 
with the Local Plan 

 

Additional Comments relating to 
the Local Plan 

 

Transport Assessment or Travel 
Plan 

 

Applicant Name Mr Allan  Brodie 
Applicant Organisation Name  

Page 91

https://publicaccess.argyll-bute.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
https://publicaccess.argyll-bute.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application


Applicant Address String Ballard Farm 
Land North of Ballyhough 
Outdoor Centre 
Isle of Coll 
Scotland 
PA78 6TB 
 

Agent Name TmC Planning And Property Development Ltd 
Agent Organisation Name Philip Landa 
Agent Address String Suite 1:12 Stadium House     

Alderstone Road  
Livingston  
Scotland  
EH54 7DN 
 

Agent Phone Number planning-applications@tmcplanning.co.uk 
Agent Email Address  
PA Office Planning Services, Municipal Buildings Albany Street Oban 

PA34 4AW 
Case Officer Allocated To Area Office 
PA Office Phone Number 01546 605518 
PA Office email address  

planning.olandi@argyll-bute.gov.uk 
 

PA Response to  

planning.olandi@argyll-bute.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 92



Argyll and Bute Council 
Comhairle Earra Gháidheal agus Bhóid 
 
 
Development And Infrastructure Services 
Executive Director: Kirsty Flanagan 
 

 

Municipal Buildings Albany Street Oban PA34 4AW 
 

 
Our Ref: 22/02078/PPP 
 
4 July 2023 
 
 F.A.O.    Hugh McBrien 
West Of Scotland Archaeologist Service 
231 George Street 
Glasgow 
G1 1RX 
 
Dear Sir/ Madam 
 
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (AS AMENDED) 
PROPOSAL:  Site for the erection of dwellinghouse to be used in association with farming 
business 
SITE ADDRESS: Land North Of Ballyhough Outdoor Centre Isle Of Coll Argyll And Bute   
GRID REFERENCE: 117435 758145 
 
I attach a copy of the consultation request notification for the above planning application. Please 
return your observations to Argyll and Bute Council, Development Management, Kilmory Castle, 
Lochgilphead, Argyll, PA31 8RT or reply to this email by 25 July 2023 
 
If you are unable to reply by this time please advise the local area office on 01546 605518 by 11 
July 2023. If we have not received a written reply by 25 July 2023 and no request has been made 
for an extension to the time period, we shall assume that you have no objections to the proposal 
and the planning application will be processed accordingly. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
Central Validation Team 
 
 
 
Development and Economic Growth 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 93



Consultation Request Notification 
 

Planning Authority Name Argyll and Bute Council  
Response Date 25 July 2023 
Planning Authority 
Reference 

22/02078/PPP 

Nature of Proposal 
(Description) 

Site for the erection of dwellinghouse to be used in association 
with farming business 

Site (including postcode 
where available) 

Land North Of Ballyhough Outdoor Centre 
Isle Of Coll 
Argyll And Bute 

Site Gazetteer UPRN 000125062436 
Proposal Location Easting 117435 
Proposal Location Northing 758145 
Area of application site 
(m²) 

 

Clarification of Specific 
reasons for Consultation 

 

Development Hierarchy 
Level 

LOCAL 

Supporting Documentation  Please enter Our Ref (at the top of this letter) into the search 
field of Argyll and Bute Council’s Public Access system at: 
https://publicaccess.argyll-bute.gov.uk/online-
applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application  
Then navigate through to view the associated document. 

Date of Validation by 
Planning Authority 

9th November 2022 

Date of Consultation 
 

EIA Required? 
 

Is the application a 
departure from the Local 
Plan? 

 
  

Applicant Name Mr Allan  Brodie 
Applicant Organisation 
Name 

 

Applicant Address Ballard Farm 
Land North of Ballyhough 
Outdoor Centre 
Isle of Coll 
Scotland 
PA78 6TB  

Agent Name TmC Planning And Property Development Ltd 
Agent Organisation Name 
(If relevant) 

Philip Landa 

Agent Address Suite 1:12 Stadium House     
Alderstone Road  
Livingston  
Scotland  
EH54 7DN  

Planning Office Address Municipal Buildings Albany Street Oban PA34 4AW 
Planning Office Phone 
Number 

01546 605518 
 

Planning Office Email 
Address 

planning.olandi@argyll-bute.gov.uk 

Page 94

https://publicaccess.argyll-bute.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
https://publicaccess.argyll-bute.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application


Argyll and Bute Council 
Comhairle Earra Gháidheal agus Bhóid 
 
 
Development And Infrastructure Services 
Executive Director: Kirsty Flanagan 
 

 

Municipal Buildings Albany Street Oban PA34 4AW 
 

 
Our Ref: 22/02078/PPP 
 
14 December 2022 
 
 F.A.O.    David Kerr 
Animal Health And Welfare Officer 
Animal Health And Welfare Officer/Environmental Health Officer 
Argyll And Bute Council 
Planning And Regulatory Services 
22 Hill Street 
Dunoon 
Argyll    PA23 7AP 
 
 
Dear Sir/ Madam 
 
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (AS AMENDED) 
PROPOSAL:  Site for the erection of dwellinghouse to be used in association with farming 
business 
SITE ADDRESS: Land North Of Ballyhough Outdoor Centre Isle Of Coll Argyll And Bute   
GRID REFERENCE: 117435 758145 
 
I attach a copy of the consultation request notification for the above planning application. Please 
return your observations to Argyll and Bute Council, Development Management, Kilmory Castle, 
Lochgilphead, Argyll, PA31 8RT or reply to this email by 4 January 2023 
 
If you are unable to reply by this time please advise the local area office on 01546 605518 by 21 
December 2022. If we have not received a written reply by 4 January 2023 and no request has 
been made for an extension to the time period, we shall assume that you have no objections to the 
proposal and the planning application will be processed accordingly. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
Central Validation Team 
 
 
 
Development and Economic Growth 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 95



Consultation Request Notification 
 

Planning Authority Name Argyll and Bute Council  
Response Date 4 January 2023 
Planning Authority 
Reference 

22/02078/PPP 

Nature of Proposal 
(Description) 

Site for the erection of dwellinghouse to be used in association 
with farming business 

Site (including postcode 
where available) 

Land North Of Ballyhough Outdoor Centre 
Isle Of Coll 
Argyll And Bute 

Site Gazetteer UPRN 000125062436 
Proposal Location Easting 117435 
Proposal Location Northing 758145 
Area of application site 
(m²) 

 

Clarification of Specific 
reasons for Consultation 

Labour unit requirement details submitted in application for new 
dwelling. Comments are sought on the case presented. 

Development Hierarchy 
Level 

LOCAL 

Supporting Documentation  Please enter Our Ref (at the top of this letter) into the search 
field of Argyll and Bute Council’s Public Access system at: 
https://publicaccess.argyll-bute.gov.uk/online-
applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application  
Then navigate through to view the associated document. 

Date of Validation by 
Planning Authority 

9th November 2022 

Date of Consultation 
 

EIA Required? 
 

Is the application a 
departure from the Local 
Plan? 

 
  

Applicant Name Mr Allan  Brodie 
Applicant Organisation 
Name 

 

Applicant Address Ballard Farm 
Land North of Ballyhough 
Outdoor Centre 
Isle of Coll 
Scotland 
PA78 6TB  

Agent Name TmC Planning And Property Development Ltd 
Agent Organisation Name 
(If relevant) 

Philip Landa 

Agent Address Suite 1:12 Stadium House     
Alderstone Road  
Livingston  
Scotland  
EH54 7DN  

Planning Office Address Municipal Buildings Albany Street Oban PA34 4AW 
Planning Office Phone 
Number 

01546 605518 
 

Planning Office Email 
Address 

planning.olandi@argyll-bute.gov.uk 

Page 96

https://publicaccess.argyll-bute.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
https://publicaccess.argyll-bute.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application


Argyll and Bute Council 
Comhairle Earra Gháidheal agus Bhóid 
 
 
Development And Infrastructure Services 
Executive Director: Kirsty Flanagan 
 

 

Municipal Buildings Albany Street Oban PA34 4AW 
 

 
Our Ref: 22/02078/PPP 
 
9 November 2022 
 
 
Area Roads Oban 
Network And Environment Manager 
Municipal Buildings 
Albany Street 
Oban 
PA34 4AW 
 
Dear Sir/ Madam 
 
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (AS AMENDED) 
PROPOSAL:  Site for the erection of dwellinghouse to be used in association with farming 
business 
SITE ADDRESS: Land North Of Ballyhough Outdoor Centre Isle Of Coll Argyll And Bute   
GRID REFERENCE: 117435 758145 
 
I attach a copy of the consultation request notification for the above planning application. Please 
return your observations to Argyll and Bute Council, Development Management, Kilmory Castle, 
Lochgilphead, Argyll, PA31 8RT or reply to this email by 30 November 2022 
 
If you are unable to reply by this time please advise the local area office on 01546 605518 by 16 
November 2022. If we have not received a written reply by 30 November 2022 and no request has 
been made for an extension to the time period, we shall assume that you have no objections to the 
proposal and the planning application will be processed accordingly. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
Central Validation Team 
 
 
 
Development and Economic Growth 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 97



Consultation Request Notification 
 

Planning Authority Name Argyll and Bute Council  
Response Date 30 November 2022 
Planning Authority 
Reference 

22/02078/PPP 

Nature of Proposal 
(Description) 

Site for the erection of dwellinghouse to be used in association 
with farming business 

Site (including postcode 
where available) 

Land North Of Ballyhough Outdoor Centre 
Isle Of Coll 
Argyll And Bute 

Site Gazetteer UPRN 000125062436 
Proposal Location Easting 117435 
Proposal Location Northing 758145 
Area of application site 
(m²) 

 

Clarification of Specific 
reasons for Consultation 

Standard Consultation 

Development Hierarchy 
Level 

 

Supporting Documentation  Please enter Our Ref (at the top of this letter) into the search 
field of Argyll and Bute Council’s Public Access system at: 
https://publicaccess.argyll-bute.gov.uk/online-
applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application  
Then navigate through to view the associated document. 

Date of Validation by 
Planning Authority 

9th November 2022 

Date of Consultation 
 

EIA Required? 
 

Is the application a 
departure from the Local 
Plan? 

 
  

Applicant Name Mr Allan  Brodie 
Applicant Organisation 
Name 

 

Applicant Address Ballard Farm 
Land North of Ballyhough 
Outdoor Centre 
Isle of Coll 
Scotland 
PA78 6TB  

Agent Name TmC Planning And Property Development Ltd 
Agent Organisation Name 
(If relevant) 

Philip Landa 

Agent Address Suite 1:12 Stadium House     
Alderstone Road  
Livingston  
Scotland  
EH54 7DN  

Planning Office Address Municipal Buildings Albany Street Oban PA34 4AW 
Planning Office Phone 
Number 

01546 605518 
 

Planning Office Email 
Address 

planning.hq@argyll-bute.gov.uk 

Page 98

https://publicaccess.argyll-bute.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
https://publicaccess.argyll-bute.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application


Argyll and Bute Council 
Comhairle Earra Gháidheal agus Bhóid 
 
 
Development And Infrastructure Services 
Executive Director: Kirsty Flanagan 
 

 

Municipal Buildings Albany Street Oban PA34 4AW 
 

 
Our Ref: 22/02078/PPP 
 
4 July 2023 
 
 F.A.O.    Sheila McKenzie 
Development Policy Section 
Planning And Regulatory Services 
Development And Infrastructure 
Argyll And Bute Council 
Manse Brae 
Lochgilphead 
PA31 8RD 
 
Dear Sir/ Madam 
 
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (AS AMENDED) 
PROPOSAL:  Site for the erection of dwellinghouse to be used in association with farming 
business 
SITE ADDRESS: Land North Of Ballyhough Outdoor Centre Isle Of Coll Argyll And Bute   
GRID REFERENCE: 117435 758145 
 
I attach a copy of the consultation request notification for the above planning application. Please 
return your observations to Argyll and Bute Council, Development Management, Kilmory Castle, 
Lochgilphead, Argyll, PA31 8RT or reply to this email by 25 July 2023 
 
If you are unable to reply by this time please advise the local area office on 01546 605518 by 11 
July 2023. If we have not received a written reply by 25 July 2023 and no request has been made 
for an extension to the time period, we shall assume that you have no objections to the proposal 
and the planning application will be processed accordingly. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
Central Validation Team 
 
 
 
Development and Economic Growth 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 99



Consultation Request Notification 
 

Planning Authority Name Argyll and Bute Council  
Response Date 25 July 2023 
Planning Authority 
Reference 

22/02078/PPP 

Nature of Proposal 
(Description) 

Site for the erection of dwellinghouse to be used in association 
with farming business 

Site (including postcode 
where available) 

Land North Of Ballyhough Outdoor Centre 
Isle Of Coll 
Argyll And Bute 

Site Gazetteer UPRN 000125062436 
Proposal Location Easting 117435 
Proposal Location Northing 758145 
Area of application site 
(m²) 

 

Clarification of Specific 
reasons for Consultation 

Site is within the CZ within the current LDP and within the 
Countryside Area of the pLDP2. Seeking comments on the 
differing policies of the current LDP and the pLDP2. 

Development Hierarchy 
Level 

LOCAL 

Supporting Documentation  Please enter Our Ref (at the top of this letter) into the search 
field of Argyll and Bute Council’s Public Access system at: 
https://publicaccess.argyll-bute.gov.uk/online-
applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application  
Then navigate through to view the associated document. 

Date of Validation by 
Planning Authority 

9th November 2022 

Date of Consultation 
 

EIA Required? 
 

Is the application a 
departure from the Local 
Plan? 

 
  

Applicant Name Mr Allan  Brodie 
Applicant Organisation 
Name 

 

Applicant Address Ballard Farm 
Land North of Ballyhough 
Outdoor Centre 
Isle of Coll 
Scotland 
PA78 6TB  

Agent Name TmC Planning And Property Development Ltd 
Agent Organisation Name 
(If relevant) 

Philip Landa 

Agent Address Suite 1:12 Stadium House     
Alderstone Road  
Livingston  
Scotland  
EH54 7DN  

Planning Office Address Municipal Buildings Albany Street Oban PA34 4AW 
Planning Office Phone 
Number 

01546 605518 
 

Page 100

https://publicaccess.argyll-bute.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
https://publicaccess.argyll-bute.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application


Planning Office Email 
Address 

planning.olandi@argyll-bute.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 103



 
 

            Operational Services 
Oban, Lorn and the Isles Area 

OBSERVATIONS ON PLANNING APPLICATION 
                   Our Ref: 22/02078/PPP   

                                                    Contact: James Jackson        
          Tel:         01631 567983 

                                       
Planning Application No: 22/02078/PPP    Dated: 9th November 2022          Received:  
Applicant: Mr Allan Brodie. 
Proposed Development: Site for the erection of dwellinghouse to be used in association with 
farming business. 
Location: Land North Of Ballyhough Outdoor Centre Isle Of Coll Argyll And Bute. 
Type of consent: Planning Permission In Principal. 
Ref. No(s) of Drg(s) submitted: Series of drawings 
 
RECOMMENDATION: No Objections Subject To Conditions. 
 

Proposals Acceptable Y  Proposals Acceptable Y/N  Proposals Acceptable Y/N 

 1. General    3. New Roads     4. Servicing and Car Parking  

 (a) General Impact of development  Y  (a) Widths Y  (a) Drainage    Y 

(b) Safety Audit Required  N  (b) Pedestrian Provision Y  (b) Car parking Provision Y 

(c) Traffic Impact Analysis Required  N  (c) Layout (Horizontal/Vertical 
alignment) 

Y  (c) Layout of Parking bays/Garages Y 

(d) Drainage Impact/Flooding   
     Assessment Required 

 N  (d) Turning Facilities 
(Circles/Hammerheads) 

Y  (d) Servicing Arrangements/Driveways Y 

(e) Sustainable Drainage System 
     (SUDS) Provision 

 N  (e) Junction Details  
(Locations/radii/sightlines) 

Y    

2. Existing Roads   (f) Provision for P.U. Services Y    

(a) Type of connection (Road  
      Junction/Footway Crossing) 

Y     5. Signing n/a          
(b) Location(s) of Connection(s) Y     (a) Location  

(b) Sight-lines. 42m x 2.4m 
 

Y     (b) Illumination  

(d) Pedestrian Provision Y       
 

 Item 
Ref. 

COMMENTS  

     1 
      
     2a 
      

The proposal is served by a private track situated off the B8071 Ballyhough Farm Road within a rural 
60mph speed restriction. 
Existing access at the connection with the public road requires upgrading. 
 

   
Item 
Ref. 

                                                                         CONDITIONS/ REASONS 

 
     2a 
      
     2c 
 
     4a 
     4b 
     4d 

 
Access at junction with public road to be constructed in accordance with Operational Services Drg No 
SD 08/004a. 
No walls, fences, hedges etc will be permitted within 2m from the channel line of the public road. 
Visibility splays measuring 42m x 2m to be cleared and maintained.  
A system of surface water drainage is required to prevent the flow of water onto the public road. 
Parking and turning commensurate with dwelling to be provided. 
Bin store to be provided at the rear of the service lay. 

 
Notes for intimation to Applicant 
(i) Construction Consent (S21)* Not Required 
(ii) Road Bond (S17)*                            Not Required 
(iii) Road openings Permit (S56)*                                 Required 
*Relevant Section of the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984 
 
Signed:  James Jackson, Technical Officer                                        Date: 14/11/2022

Page 104



SW Internal
General

Monday, 14 November 2022

Local Planner
Planning Service
Argyll and Bute Council
Helensburgh
G84 7PG

Dear Customer,

North Of Ballyhough Outdoor Centre, Isle Of Coll, Argyll And Bute, PA78 6TB
Planning Ref: 22/02078/PPP
Our Ref: DSCAS-0076266-Y87
Proposal: 22/02078/PPP | Site for the erection of dwellinghouse to be used in 
association with farming business | Land North Of Ballyhough Outdoor Centre 
Isle Of Coll Argyll And Bute

Please quote our reference in all future correspondence

Audit of Proposal

Scottish Water has no objection to this planning application; however, the applicant should be 
aware that this does not confirm that the proposed development can currently be serviced. 
Please read the following carefully as there may be further action required. Scottish Water 
would advise the following:

Water Assessment

Unfortunately, according to our records there is no public Scottish Water, Water 
infrastructure within the vicinity of this proposed development therefore we would advise 
applicant to investigate private options.

Foul Assessment

Unfortunately, according to our records there is no public Scottish Water, Waste Water 
infrastructure within the vicinity of this proposed development therefore we would advise 
applicant to investigate private treatment options. 

Development Operations
The Bridge

Buchanan Gate Business Park
Cumbernauld Road

Stepps
Glasgow
G33 6FB

Development Operations
Freephone  Number - 0800 3890379

E-Mail - DevelopmentOperations@scottishwater.co.uk
www.scottishwater.co.uk

Page 105



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Internal 
General 

Please Note 
 

 The applicant should be aware that we are unable to reserve capacity at our water 
and/or waste water treatment works for their proposed development. Once a formal 
connection application is submitted to Scottish Water after full planning permission has 
been granted, we will review the availability of capacity at that time and advise the 
applicant accordingly. 

 
 

 
 
Surface Water 
 
For reasons of sustainability and to protect our customers from potential future sewer 
flooding, Scottish Water will not accept any surface water connections into our combined 
sewer system. 
 
There may be limited exceptional circumstances where we would allow such a connection 
for brownfield sites only, however this will require significant justification from the customer 
taking account of various factors including legal, physical, and technical challenges. 
 
In order to avoid costs and delays where a surface water discharge to our combined sewer 
system is anticipated, the developer should contact Scottish Water at the earliest opportunity 
with strong evidence to support the intended drainage plan prior to making a connection 
request. We will assess this evidence in a robust manner and provide a decision that reflects 
the best option from environmental and customer perspectives.  
 
General notes: 
 

 Scottish Water asset plans can be obtained from our appointed asset plan providers: 
 

 Site Investigation Services (UK) Ltd 
 Tel: 0333 123 1223   
 Email: sw@sisplan.co.uk 
 www.sisplan.co.uk 

 
 Scottish Water’s current minimum level of service for water pressure is 1.0 bar or 10m head 

at the customer’s boundary internal outlet.  Any property which cannot be adequately 
serviced from the available pressure may require private pumping arrangements to be 
installed, subject to compliance with Water Byelaws. If the developer wishes to enquire 
about Scottish Water’s procedure for checking the water pressure in the area, then they 
should write to the Customer Connections department at the above address. 
 

 If the connection to the public sewer and/or water main requires to be laid through land out-
with public ownership, the developer must provide evidence of formal approval from the 
affected landowner(s) by way of a deed of servitude. 
 

 Scottish Water may only vest new water or waste water infrastructure which is to be laid 
through land out with public ownership where a Deed of Servitude has been obtained in our 
favour by the developer. 
 

Page 106



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Internal 
General 

 The developer should also be aware that Scottish Water requires land title to the area of 
land where a pumping station and/or SUDS proposed to vest in Scottish Water is 
constructed. 
 

 Please find information on how to submit application to Scottish Water at our Customer 
Portal. 

 
 
Next Steps:  
 

 All Proposed Developments 
 
All proposed developments require to submit a Pre-Development Enquiry (PDE) Form to be 
submitted directly to Scottish Water via our Customer Portal prior to any formal Technical 
Application being submitted. This will allow us to fully appraise the proposals. 
 
Where it is confirmed through the PDE process that mitigation works are necessary to 
support a development, the cost of these works is to be met by the developer, which Scottish 
Water can contribute towards through Reasonable Cost Contribution regulations. 
 

 Non Domestic/Commercial Property:  
 
Since the introduction of the Water Services (Scotland) Act 2005 in April 2008 the water 
industry in Scotland has opened to market competition for non-domestic customers.  All 
Non-domestic Household customers now require a Licensed Provider to act on their behalf 
for new water and waste water connections. Further details can be obtained at 
www.scotlandontap.gov.uk  
 

 Trade Effluent Discharge from Non-Domestic Property: 
 
Certain discharges from non-domestic premises may constitute a trade effluent in terms of 
the Sewerage (Scotland) Act 1968.  Trade effluent arises from activities including; 
manufacturing, production and engineering; vehicle, plant and equipment washing, waste 
and leachate management. It covers both large and small premises, including activities such 
as car washing and launderettes. Activities not covered include hotels, caravan sites or 
restaurants.  

 If you are in any doubt as to whether the discharge from your premises is likely to be trade 
effluent, please contact us on 0800 778 0778 or email TEQ@scottishwater.co.uk using the 
subject “Is this Trade Effluent?".  Discharges that are deemed to be trade effluent need to 
apply separately for permission to discharge to the sewerage system.  The forms and 
application guidance notes can be found here. 

 Trade effluent must never be discharged into surface water drainage systems as these are 
solely for draining rainfall run off. 

 For food services establishments, Scottish Water recommends a suitably sized grease trap 
is fitted within the food preparation areas, so the development complies with Standard 3.7 a) 
of the Building Standards Technical Handbook and for best management and housekeeping 
practices to be followed which prevent food waste, fat oil and grease from being disposed 
into sinks and drains. 

Page 107



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Internal 
General 

 The Waste (Scotland) Regulations which require all non-rural food businesses, producing 
more than 50kg of food waste per week, to segregate that waste for separate collection. The 
regulations also ban the use of food waste disposal units that dispose of food waste to the 
public sewer. Further information can be found at www.resourceefficientscotland.com 
 

I trust the above is acceptable however if you require any further information regarding this 
matter please contact me on 0800 389 0379 or via the e-mail address below or at 
planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk.  
 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 
Ruth Kerr 
Development Operations Analyst 
Tel: 0800 389 0379 
developmentoperations@scottishwater.co.uk 
 

 
Scottish Water Disclaimer:  
 
“It is important to note that the information on any such plan provided on Scottish Water’s 
infrastructure, is for indicative purposes only and its accuracy cannot be relied upon.  When the 
exact location and the nature of the infrastructure on the plan is a material requirement then you 
should undertake an appropriate site investigation to confirm its actual position in the ground and 
to determine if it is suitable for its intended purpose.  By using the plan you agree that Scottish 
Water will not be liable for any loss, damage or costs caused by relying upon it or from carrying 
out any such site investigation." 

Page 108



 

 

Cameron House, Albany Street, Oban, Argyll PA34 4AE 
Taigh Chamshron, Sràid Albanaidh, An t-Òban, Earra-Ghàidheal PA34 4AE 

 01463 72500  nature.scot 
NatureScot is the operating name of Scottish Natural Heritage 

 

 

 

By email only: planning.olandi@argyll-bute.gov.uk 
 
Argyll & Bute Council 
Planning Services 
1A Manse Brae  
Lochgilphead 
PA31 8RD 
 
17 February 2023 
Your ref: 22/02078/PPP   
Our ref: A3922736 
 

Dear Sir/Madam 

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING SCOTLAND ACT 1997 
PROPOSAL: Site for the erection of dwelling house to be used in association with farming 
business.  
LOCATION: Land North Of Ballyhough Outdoor Centre, Isle Of Coll, Argyll And Bute 
 

Thank you for consulting us on the above proposal dated 9 November 2022 and apologies for the 
delay in responding to you.  

The application is for a single dwelling house on land close to Ballyhough Outdoor Centre Isle Of 
Coll that forms part of Totamore Dunes and Loch Ballyhaugh Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), 
designated for its extensive dune and machair system and vascular plant assemblage. The dwelling 
house is for the farmer of Ballyhough to facilitate the continued farming of the immediate area at 
Ballyhough. 

There are natural heritage interests of national importance on the site, but these will not be affected 
by the proposal. 

The development site is located outside the key machair and dune habitat in an area that is 
considered important, principally for the nationally-rare orchid, Irish lady’s tresses (Spiranthes 
romanzoffiana). This plants preferred habitat is wet grassy places such as marshy meadows. The 
development site does not appear to be the preferred habitat and our records do not show any 
sightings closer than 50m from the plot therefore it is unlikely that the integrity of the SSSI will be 
affected.  

Page 109



 
 

 

 

Our advice it that the applicant should familiarise themselves with the species and take care to avoid 
storing building materials on the ground around the plot thereby ensuring any disturbance is 
contained within the plot boundary or nearby hardstanding. 

It is for the planning authority to determine, within the context of its own policies, whether 
conditions are necessary to secure the mitigation set out above. 

If you wish to discuss this further please do not hesitate to get in touch. 

 

Yours faithfully  

 

 

Sally Weaser 
Operations officer - Operations West  
sally.weaser@nature.scot  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 110



1

Cameron, Zara

From: Robins, Paul (NRS) <Paul.Robins@glasgow.gov.uk>
Sent: 16 December 2022 14:29
To: olandi, planning; Shaw, Emma
Subject: 22/02078/PPP - Site for the erection of dwellinghouse to be used in association 

with farming business | Land North Of Ballyhough Outdoor Centre Isle Of Coll 
Argyll And Bute (OFFICIAL)

OFFICIAL 
 
Dear Emma, 
 
I refer to the above planning application downloaded recently by the West of Scotland Archaeology Service 
to assess any archaeological issues raised by the proposals.   
  
The application lies within an area of archaeological sensitivity and potential based on the presence of 
recorded sites of prehistoric, medieval and later date in the surrounding landscape which we consider has 
the potential to produce buried remains of any period. The site lies some 250m East of and in full view from 
An Caisteal, a prehistoric fort of national significance (though not currently a Scheduled Ancient Monument)
and it seems likely that the proposals will form an additional minor detrimental aspect to its current landscape 
setting. The proposal is large enough in scale in terms of its proposed ground disturbance and in a greenfield 
area where construction could well reveal buried archaeological remains of any period. As such a potential 
archaeological issue is raised by the proposals.   
  
Government policy as set out in Scottish Planning Policy is that planning authorities should ensure that 
prospective developers arrange for the archaeological issues raised by their proposals to be adequately 
addressed. Where the degree of archaeological significance or survival is uncertain I would advise the
Council to consider attaching an archaeological watching brief condition to any consent they may be minded 
to grant. The suggested wording of such a condition is given below. This is based on current best practice 
and experience, and reflects the principles outlined in Planning Advice Note 2/2011:-   
  
“The developer shall secure the implementation of an archaeological watching brief, to be carried out by an
archaeological organisation acceptable to the Planning Authority, during all ground disturbance. The retained 
archaeological organisation shall be afforded access at all reasonable times and allowed to record, recover
and report items of interest and finds. A method statement for the watching brief will be submitted by the 
applicant, agreed by the West of Scotland Archaeology Service, and approved by the Planning Authority 
prior to commencement of the watching brief. The name of the archaeological organisation retained by the 
developer shall be given to the Planning Authority and to the West of Scotland Archaeology Service in writing
not less than 14 days before development commences.”   
  
The applicant or developer will need to secure the services of a professional archaeological contractor to 
undertake the watching brief. An informal list of such contractors is available on our website www.wosas.net
for the developer's use in securing the required works, should the Council grant consent with the condition 
recommended above.  
  
The watching brief would be required on the initial stages of proposed ground disturbance associated with 
the proposals. This will include the initial stages of construction, such as the removal of turf or topsoil. It may 
be possible for this initial stage of works to show that there are no archaeological remains present on the 
site, but if not then the subsequent deeper excavations should also be watched.  If buried remains are 
identified there may be a requirement for further stages of archaeological works in order to properly excavate 
and record them before or during further development as necessary.  This could include further excavation 
and any post excavation analyses or publication of the results if warranted.  
  
Please contact me by email if you require any further information or advice. 
 
Regards 

Page 111



2

Paul 

Paul Robins
Senior Archaeologist
West of Scotland Archaeology Service
231 George Street, Glasgow, G1 1RX
Tel: 0141 287 8335  email: 
Paul.Robins@wosas.glasgow.gov.uk  

WoSAS Archaeological Impact Mitigation System – Recipient of a Commendation in Development Management, 
2014 Scottish Awards for Quality in Planning 

OFFICIAL 

Proud host of 2023 UCI Cycling World Championships 3-13 August 2023  

Please print responsibly and, if you do, recycle appropriately.  

Disclaimer: This email is from Glasgow City Council or one of its Arm’s Length Organisations (ALEOs). 
Views expressed in this message do not necessarily reflect those of the council, or ALEO, who will not 
necessarily be bound by its contents. If you are not the intended recipient of this email (and any attachment), 
please inform the sender by return email and destroy all copies. Unauthorised access, use, disclosure, 
storage or copying is not permitted. Please be aware that communication by internet email is not secure as 
messages can be intercepted and read by someone else. We therefore strongly advise you not to email any 
information which, if disclosed to someone else, would be likely to cause you distress. If you have an 
enquiry of this nature then please write to us using the postal system. If you choose to email this information 
to us there can be no guarantee of privacy. Any email, including its content, may be monitored and used by 
the council, or ALEO, for reasons of security and for monitoring internal compliance with the office policy 
on staff use. Email monitoring or blocking software is also used. Please be aware that you have a 
responsibility to make sure that any email you write or forward is within the bounds of the law. Glasgow 
City Council, or ALEOs, cannot guarantee that this message or any attachment is virus free or has not been 
intercepted and amended. You should perform your own virus checks.  

Protective Marking 

We are using protective marking software to mark all our electronic and paper information based on its 
content, and the level of security it needs when being shared, handled and stored. You should be aware of 
what these marks mean for you when information is shared with you:  

1.OFFICIAL SENSITIVE (plus one of four sub categories: Personal Data, Commercial, Operational, Senior 
Management) - this is information regarding the business of the council or of an individual which is 
considered to be sensitive. In some instances an email of this category may be marked as PRIVATE 

2.OFFICIAL - this is information relating to the business of the council and is considered not to be 
particularly sensitive  

3.NOT OFFICIAL – this is not information about the business of the council. 

For more information about the Glasgow City Council Protective Marking Policy please visit 
https://glasgow.gov.uk/protectivemarking For further information and to view the council’s Privacy 
Statement(s), please click on link below:www.glasgow.gov.uk/privacy 

Page 112



TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE 
(SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2013 

REGULATION 20 (1) ADVERT STATEMENT 

 

The application listed below together with the plans and other documents submitted may be 
viewed electronically through Argyll and Bute Council website at www.argyll-bute.gov.uk. Having 
regard to Schedule 6, Part 3, s10 of the Coronavirus (Scotland) Act 2020, documents are only 
available to inspect electronically at this time. Customers requiring assistance can contact us by e-
mail: planning.hq@argyll-bute.gov.uk or tel. 01546 605518. 

Written comments for the following applications may be made by e-mail: planning.hq@argyll-
bute.gov.uk or Argyll and Bute Council, Development Management, Kilmory Castle, Lochgilphead, 
Argyll, PA31 8RT by 15.12.2022 for the following list of applications for planning permission. 

Ref No:                22/02078/PPP 
Applicant:           Mr Allan  Brodie 
Proposal:           Site for the erection of dwellinghouse to be used in association with 
farming business 
Site address:     Land North Of Ballyhough Outdoor Centre Isle Of Coll Argyll And Bute   
Publication Date: 24.11.2022 
 
A weekly list of  applications which can be viewed electronically through Argyll and Bute Council 
website at www.argyll-bute.gov.uk. 

Page 113



SCOTTISH HYDRO ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION plc
ELECTRICITY ACT 1989

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) 
ACT 1997

THE ELECTRICITY WORKS (ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPACT ASSESSMENT) (SCOTLAND) 

REGULATIONS 2017
Notice is hereby given that Scottish Hydro Electric Transmission plc, 
company registration number SC213461, with its Registered Office at 
Inveralmond House, 200 Dunkeld Road, Perth, PH1 3AQ, has applied 
to the Scottish Ministers for consent under Section 37 of the Electricity 
Act 1989 to install a 275 kV overhead electric line between the proposed 
Creag Dhubh Substation at OS Grid Reference NN 08780 19419 and 
the recently constructed Inveraray-Crossaig 275 kV capable OHL circuit 
at OS Grid Reference NN 07970 11178. The total length of the line will 
be approximately 9 km plus associated connections. The proposed 
development has been subject to Environmental Impact Assessment 
(EIA). An EIA Report has been produced to accompany the application 
for consent.
Scottish Hydro Electric Transmission plc has also applied for a direction 
under Section 57(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 
1997 that planning permission for the development be deemed to be 
granted.
A copy of the application, with a plan showing the land to which 
it relates, together with a copy of the EIA Report discussing the 
Company’s proposals in more detail and presenting an analysis of the 
environmental implications, is available for public inspection, free of 
charge on the application website https://www.ssen-transmission.co.uk/
projects/creag-dhubh-inveraray-275kv-overhead-line/ or on the Scottish 
Government Energy Consents website at www.energyconsents.scot 
under application reference ECU00003442. 
The EIA Report is also available for public inspection in person, free of 
charge at:

Copies of the EIA Report may be obtained from Scottish Hydro Electric 
Transmission plc (tel: 07901135758 / email: caitlin.quinn@sse.com) at 
a cost of £1,060.00 for a hard copy and free of charge on a DVD/CD or 
USB. Copies of a Non-Technical Summary are available free of charge.
Any representations to the application may be submitted to Scottish 
Ministers via the Scottish Government Energy Consents Unit, either 
via the website at https://www.energyconsents.scot/Register.aspx; by 
email to representations@gov.scot; or by post to Scottish Government 
Energy Consents Unit, 4th Floor, 5 Atlantic Quay, 150 Broomielaw, 
Glasgow, G2 8LU, identifying the proposal and specifying the grounds 
for representation. Please note that there may be a delay in the Energy 
Consents Unit receiving representations by post.
Written or emailed representations should be dated, clearly stating 
the name (in block capitals) and full return email and postal address 
of those making representations. Only representations sent by email to 
representations@gov.scot will receive acknowledgement.
All representations should be received not later than 23rd January 2023 
although Scottish Ministers may consider representations received after 
this date.
Any subsequent additional information which is submitted by the 
developer will be subject to further public notice in this manner, and 
representations on such information will be accepted as per this notice.
As a result of a statutory objection from the relevant planning authority, 
or where Scottish Ministers decide to exercise their discretion to do so, 
Scottish Ministers can also cause a public inquiry to be held.
Following examination of the environmental information, Scottish 
Ministers will determine the application for consent in one of two ways: 

General Data Protection Regulations
The Scottish Government Energy Consents Unit processes consent applications and 
consultation representations under the Electricity Act 1989. During the process, to 
support transparency in decision making, the Scottish Government publishes online 
at www.energyconsents.scot. A privacy notice is published on the help page at www.
energyconsents.scot. This explains how the Energy Consents Unit processes your personal 
information.  If you have any concerns about how your personal data is handled, please 
email Econsents_admin@gov.scot

Location 

The Inveraray Inn

Opening Hours 

Monday-Sunday 
8am – 10pm

Address 

Front Street East
Inveraray
PA32 8XB

Page 114



 
 

THIS FORM IS TO ADVISE YOU THAT A PLANNING APPLICATION HAS BEEN MADE THAT 
MAY AFFECT YOU PLEASE READ THE NOTES CAREFULLY 

 
Owner, occupier or lessee   Date: 9 November 2022 
        
 

 
 

N E I G H B O U R   N O T I F I C A T I O N 
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)(Scotland)  

Regulations 2013 
 
Ref Number 22/02078/PPP 
Location Land North Of Ballyhough Outdoor Centre Isle Of Coll Argyll And Bute    
Proposal Site for the erection of dwellinghouse to be used in association with farming 

business 
Applicant Mr Allan  Brodie 
Agent - if applicable TmC Planning And Property Development Ltd 
Agent’s address Suite 1:12 Stadium House     Alderstone Road  Livingston  Scotland  EH54 

7DN  
 

Notice is hereby given that an application for planning permission has been received for the above 
development that may be of interest to you. 
 
VIEWING THE PLANS 
 
The application, plans and other documents submitted may be viewed electronically through Argyll 
and Bute Council Website at www.argyll-bute.gov.uk.  
 
Having regard to Schedule 6, Part 3, s10 of the Coronavirus (Scotland) Act 2020, documents are 
only available to inspect electronically at this time. Customers requiring assistance can contact us 
by e-mail: planning.hq@argyll-bute.gov.uk, or tel. 01546 605518. 
  
SUBMITTING COMMENTS 
 
Comments can be made on the application, either: 
 

 Online through Argyll and Bute Council Website using the Online Planning Information 
system and searching for the planning reference number above. 

 By email to  planning.olandi@argyll-bute.gov.uk 
 

 By post to Argyll and Bute Council, Development Management, Kilmory Castle, 
Lochgilphead, Argyll, PA31 8RT. Customers are requested to use electronic 
communication where possible during the coronavirus pandemic as access to Council 
buildings and processing of postal mail is currently restricted and may take longer to be 
acknowledged and attached to the planning file.  

 
You have 21 days from the date on this notice to make comments. 
 
Please read the Advice to Neighbours information which is printed with this letter. A plan of the 
proposed development is also part of this document. 

Page 115



 
 

Page 116



A D V I C E   T O   N E I G H B O U R S 
 

Why have I received this notice? 
 
This notice has been sent to you because we have received an application for planning permission 
to carry out the proposals on the front page. Your land is either adjacent to or lies within 20 metres 
of the site (identified by the cross-hatched area on the attached map). As a result the Council is 
legally required to inform you of the proposals. You have the right to make comments on the 
proposals 
 
National and Major Planning Applications 
 
If you have already made comments to the applicant at pre-application stage, you will have to 
make comments to the Council on this application if you wish us to take them into account. 
 
What can I comment on? 

 
The Council can only consider comments about planning matters. These are called “material 
considerations” and some examples are listed below (this list is not exhaustive): 
 

 Compliance with Development Plan Policy; 
 

 Appearance (design, materials etc.); 
 

 Traffic, parking or access problems; 
 

 Residential amenity (noise, overshadowing etc.); 
 

 Impact on natural or built environment. 
 
Loss of view, property values and structural problems, for example, are not material planning 
considerations and cannot be taken into account when determining the application. 
 
What happens if I make representations? 

 
If your comments are in time and relate to planning matters, they will form part of the report by the 
Head of Planning and will be considered before a decision is made on the planning application. 
Representations form part of the background papers on the application and will be made public.  
 
If you have made material representations you will be advised of the Council’s decision. You do 
not have a right of appeal against this decision. 
 
Further advice on commenting on planning proposals can be found on the Council website or we 
can send you a copy.  
 
How we handle planning applications 
 
Details of how we handle planning applications and make decisions on them can be found on the 
Council website. 
 
Contact Details 
 
If you have any questions please contact the Area Office on 01546 605518 or email 
planning.olandi@argyll-bute.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 117



Map 
 

 
 
 

Page 118



Properties notified. 
 
 
 Ballyhough Outdoor Centre Isle Of Coll Argyll And Bute PA78 6TE  
  
 
 

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of Handling Template for PPSL and Delegated Planning Applications – Updated 15.06.2023 

 
Argyll and Bute Council 

Development & Economic Growth   
 
Planning Application Report and Report of Handling as required by Schedule 2 of the 
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) 
Regulations 2013 relative to applications for Planning Permission or Planning 
Permission in Principle 
 
 
Reference No: 22/02078/PPP 
Planning Hierarchy: Local Development  
Applicant: Mr Allan  Brodie 
Proposal: Site for the erection of dwellinghouse to be used in association with 

farming business 
Site Address:  Land North Of Ballyhough Outdoor Centre, Isle of Coll 
  
  
DECISION ROUTE 
 

Delegated - Sect 43 (A) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 
 

Committee - Local Government Scotland Act 1973 
 
 
(A)  THE APPLICATION 
 

(i) Development Requiring Express Planning Permission 
 Site for the erection of dwellinghouse  
 Formation of access track  
 Connection to private water supply 
 Installation of private drainage system  

 
(ii) Other specified operations 

 None  
 
 

(B) RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Having due regard to the Development Plan and all other material considerations, it 
is recommended that planning permission in principle be refused for the reasons 
appended to this report. 
 
 

(C) CONSULTATIONS:   
 

West of Scotland Archaeology Service 
Email dated 16.12.2022 commenting on the application and advising of no objections 
subject to conditions.  
 
Area Roads Authority 
Report dated 14.11.2022 advising of no objections subject to conditions.  
 
Scottish Water 

Page 121



Report of Handling Template for PPSL and Delegated Planning Applications – Updated 15.06.2023 

Letter dated 14.11.2022 commenting on the application to advise that there is no 
Scottish Water infrastructure or Scottish Water waste water infrastructure within the 
vicinity of the proposed development site.  
 
NatureScot 
Letter dated 17.02.2023 commenting on the application.  
 
Animal Health and Welfare Officer 
Email dated 14.12.2022 supporting the application on the basis of operational need.  
 
Development Plan Policy 
No response at time of report and no request for an extension of time.  
 
The above represents a summary of the issues raised.  Full details of the consultation 
responses are available to view via the Public Access section of the Council’s 
website.   
 
 

(D) HISTORY:   
 

22/00595/PPP 
Site for the erection of dwellinghouse 
Refused on 18.08.2022 

 
 
(E) PUBLICITY:   
 

The proposal has been advertised in terms of Regulation 20 and Neighbour 
Notification procedures, overall closing date 25.07.2023.  
 
 

(F) REPRESENTATIONS:   
 

(i) Representations received from: 
 

No representations received.  
 

(ii) Summary of issues raised: 
 

 N/A 
 
 
(G) SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

Has the application been the subject of: 
 
(i) Environmental Impact Assessment Report: Yes No 

  
(ii) An Appropriate Assessment under the 

Conservation (Natural Habitats) Regulations 
1994:    

Yes No 

  
(iii) A Design or Design/Access statement:    Yes No 

 

Page 122



Report of Handling Template for PPSL and Delegated Planning Applications – Updated 15.06.2023 

The application has 
been submitted with a 
Planning Statement. 

  
(iv) A report on the impact of the proposed 

development eg. Retail impact, transport 
impact, noise impact, flood risk, drainage 
impact etc:   

Yes No  

  
 
(H) PLANNING OBLIGATIONS 
 

Is a Section 75 agreement required:   Yes No  
  
 
(I) Has a Direction been issued by Scottish Ministers in terms of Regulation 30, 

31 or 32:  Yes No 
  
  
(J) Section 25 of the Act; Development Plan and any other material considerations 

over and above those listed above which have been taken into account in the 
assessment of the application 

 
(i)  List of all Development Plan Policy considerations taken into account 

in assessment of the application. 
 
National Planning Framework 4 (Adopted 13th February 2023) 

 
Part 2 – National Planning Policy 
 
Sustainable Places 
NPF4 Policy 1 – Tackling the Climate and Nature Crises 
NPF4 Policy 2 – Climate Mitigation and Adaption 
NPF4 Policy 3 – Biodiversity 
NPF4 Policy 4 – Natural Places 
NPF4 Policy 5 – Soils 
NPF4 Policy 7 – Historic Assets and Places 
NPF4 Policy 9 – Brownfield, Vacant and Derelict Land and Empty Buildings (includes 
provisions relevant to Greenfield Sites) 
NPF4 Policy 12 – Zero Waste 
NPF4 Policy 13 – Sustainable Transport 
 
Liveable Places 
NPF4 Policy 14 – Design, Quality and Place 
NPF4 Policy 15 – Local Living and 20 Minute Neighbourhoods 
NPF4 Policy 16 – Quality Homes 
NPF4 Policy 17 – Rural Homes 
NPF4 Policy 18 – Infrastructure First 
NPF4 Policy 22 – Flood Risk and Water Management 
 
Productive Places 
NPF4 Policy 29 – Rural Development 

 
 ‘Argyll and Bute Local Development Plan’ Adopted March 2015  

Page 123



Report of Handling Template for PPSL and Delegated Planning Applications – Updated 15.06.2023 

 
 LDP STRAT 1 – Sustainable Development 
 LDP DM 1 – Development within the Development Management Zones 
 LDP 3 – Supporting the Protection Conservation and Enhancement of our 
Environment 
 LDP 5 –Supporting the Sustainable Growth of our Economy 
 LDP 8 – Supporting the Strength of our Communities 
 LDP 9 – Development Setting, Layout and Design 
 LDP 10 – Maximising our Resources and Reducing our Consumption 
 LDP 11 – Improving our Connectivity and Infrastructure 

 
‘Supplementary Guidance to the Argyll and Bute Local Plan 2015’ (Adopted 
March 2016 & December 2016) 
 
Natural Environment 
 
SG LDP ENV 1 – Impact on Habitats, Species and our Biodiversity 
SG LDP ENV 4 – Impact on SSSIs and National Nature Reserves 
SG LDP ENV 11 – Protection of Soil and Peat Resources 
 
Landscape and Design 
 
SG LDP ENV 14 – Landscape 
SG LDP ACE 1 – Area Capacity Evaluation (ACE) 
 
Historic Environment and Archaeology 
 
SG LDP ENV 20 – Impact on Sites of Archaeological Importance 
 
Support for Business & Industry: General 
 
SG LDP BUS 5 – Economically Fragile Areas 

 
General Housing Development 
 
SG LDP HOU 1 – General Housing Development Including Affordable Housing 
Provision 

 
Sustainable Siting and Design 
 
SG LDP Sustainable – Sustainable Siting and Design Principles 
 
Resources and Consumption 
 
SG LDP SERV 1 – Private Sewage Treatment Plants & Wastewater Systems 
SG LDP SERV 2 – Incorporation of Natural Features / SuDS 
SG LDP SERV 5(b) – Provision of Waste Storage & Collection Facilities within New 
Development 
SG LDP SERV 6 – Private Water Supplies and Water Conservation 
SG LDP SERV 9 – Safeguarding Better Quality Agricultural Land 
 
Addressing Climate Change 
 
SG LDP Sust Check – Sustainability Checklist 

 

Page 124



Report of Handling Template for PPSL and Delegated Planning Applications – Updated 15.06.2023 

Transport (Including Core Paths) 
 

SG LDP TRAN 2 – Development and Public Transport Accessibility 
SG LDP TRAN 4 – New & Existing, Public Roads & Private Access Regimes 
SG LDP TRAN 6 – Vehicle Parking Provision 

 
(ii)  List of all other material planning considerations taken into account in 

the assessment of the application, having due regard to Annex A of 
Circular 3/2013.  

 
 Consultation Reponses 
 Planning History 
 Argyll and Bute Sustainable Design Guidance, 2006 
 Isle of Coll Sustainable Design Guide  
 ABC Technical Note – Biodiversity (Feb 2017) 
 ABC draft Technical Note – Argyll and Bute Windows (April 2018) 

  
Argyll and Bute proposed Local Development Plan 2 (November 2019) – The 
Examination by Scottish Government Reporters to the Argyll and Bute Local 
Development Plan 2 has now concluded and the Examination Report has been 
published (13th June 2023). The Examination Report is a material consideration of 
significant weight and may be used as such until the conclusion of the LDP2 
Adoption Process. Consequently, the Proposed Local Development Plan 2 as 
recommended to be modified by the Examination Report and the published Non 
Notifiable Modifications is a material consideration in the determination of all 
planning and related applications. 

 
Spatial and Settlement Strategy 
 
Policy 02 – Outwith Settlement Areas 
Policy 04 – Sustainable Development 
 
High Quality Places 
 
Policy 05 – Design and Placemaking 
Policy 08 – Sustainable Siting 
Policy 09 – Sustainable Design 
Policy 10 – Design – All Development 
Policy 21 – Sites of Archaeological Importance 
 
Diverse and Sustainable Economy 
 
Policy 22 – Economic Development 
 
Connected Places 
 
Policy 35 – Design of New and Existing, Public Roads and Private Access Regimes 
Policy 36 – New Private Accesses 
Policy 39 – Construction Standards for Private Accesses 
Policy 40 – Vehicle Parking Provision 
 
Sustainable Communities 
 
Policy 58 – Private Water Supplies and Water Conservation 

Page 125



Report of Handling Template for PPSL and Delegated Planning Applications – Updated 15.06.2023 

Policy 60 – Private Sewage Treatment Plants and Wastewater Drainage Systems 
Policy 61 – Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS) 
Policy 63 – Waste Related Development and Waste Management 

 
High Quality Environment 
 
Policy 73 – Development Impact on Habitats, Species and Biodiversity 
Policy 75 – Development Impact of Sites on Sites of Special Scientific Interest 
(SSSIs) 
Policy 79 – Protection of Soil and Peat Resources 
Policy 83 – Safeguarding Agricultural and Croft Land 

 
 

(K) Is the proposal a Schedule 2 Development not requiring an Environmental 
Impact Assessment:  Yes No 

  
  
(L) Has the application been the subject of statutory pre-application consultation 

(PAC):  Yes No 
 
 
(M) Has a Sustainability Checklist been submitted:  Yes No 
 
 
(N) Does the Council have an interest in the site:  Yes No 
 
 
(O) Requirement for a pre-determination hearing: Yes No 
  
  
(P)(i) Key Constraints/Designations Affected by the Development: 

  Totamore Dunes and Loch Ballyhaugh Site of Special Scientific Interest  
 
(P)(ii) Soils 
Agricultural Land Classification: 
 

Unclassified Land 

Peatland/Carbon Rich Soils Classification: Class 1 
Class 2 
Class 3 
Class 5 
N/A 

Peat Depth Classification: 1 metre 
  
Does the development relate to croft land? Yes No 
Would the development restrict access to croft 
or better quality agricultural land? 

Yes No N/A 

Would the development result in 
fragmentation of croft / better quality 
agricultural land? 

Yes No N/A 

 
(P)(iii) Woodland 
  

Page 126



Report of Handling Template for PPSL and Delegated Planning Applications – Updated 15.06.2023 

Will the proposal result in loss of 
trees/woodland? 
 

Yes 
No 

 
Does the proposal include any replacement or 
compensatory planting? 

Yes 
No details to be secured by condition 
N/A 

  
(P)(iv) Land Status / LDP Settlement Strategy 
Status of Land within the Application 
 

Brownfield 
Brownfield Reclaimed by Nature 
Greenfield 

 
ABC LDP 2015 Settlement Strategy  
LDP DM 1  
 

Main Town Settlement Area 
Key Rural Settlement Area 
Village/Minor Settlement Area 
Rural Opportunity Area 
Countryside Zone 
Very Sensitive Countryside Zone 
Greenbelt 

ABC pLDP2 Settlement Strategy 
 
 

Settlement Area 
Countryside Area 
Remote Countryside Area 
Helensburgh & Lomond Greenbelt 

ABC LDP 2015 Allocations/PDAs/AFAs 
etc: 
 
N/A 

ABC pLDP2 Allocations/PDAs/AFAs 
etc: 
 
N/A 

 
(P)(v) Summary assessment and summary of determining issues and material 

considerations 
 

Planning permission in principle is sought for the erection of a dwellinghouse on a 
plot of land to the north of Ballyhaugh, Isle of Coll.  
 
The application site comprises an area of undeveloped and open land. The site is 
located to the north of the long established Ballyhaugh Hebridean Centre and is 
accessed via a private unmade track spurring from the public B8071 road. The 
surrounding area is rural and undeveloped in character.  
 
An application for planning permission in principle at the site (our reference 
22/00595/PPP) was refused in August 2022. The application related to planning 
permission in principle for the erection of a dwellinghouse, and was refused as the 
site the subject of the application was within the ‘Countryside Zone’ as designated 
within the adopted Local Development Plan. The proposed development did not 
represent an appropriate opportunity for infill, rounding-off, redevelopment or the 
change of use of an existing building, nor was there an ‘exceptional case’. This 
current application now seeks consent for planning permission in principle for a 
dwellinghouse at the same site. The application has now been submitted with an 
‘exceptional case’ relating to the need for the development to support an agricultural 
business.  
 
This application is seeking planning permission in principle for a single 
dwellinghouse. The application has been submitted with indicative details of the 
proposed dwelling, including its siting within the plot, and indicative design details. 

Page 127



Report of Handling Template for PPSL and Delegated Planning Applications – Updated 15.06.2023 

The purpose of this application is to establish the principle of development with the 
matters of layout and design to be addressed by way of future application(s) for 
approval of matters specified in conditions. 
 
NPF4 Policy 1 seeks to prioritise the climate and nature crises in all decisions; it 
requires to be applied together with other policies in NPF4. Guidance from the 
Scottish Government advises that it is for the decision maker to determine whether 
the significant weight to be applied tips the balance in favour for, or against a 
proposal on the basis of its positive or negative contribution to climate and nature 
crises.   
 
NPF4 Policy 2 seeks to ensure that new development proposals will be sited to 
minimise lifecycle greenhouse gas emissions as far as possible, and that proposals 
will be sited and designed to adapt to current and future risks from climate change. 
Guidance from the Scottish Government confirms that at present there is no single 
accepted methodology for calculating and / or minimising emissions. The emphasis 
is on minimising emissions as far as possible, rather than eliminating emissions. It is 
noted that the provisions of the Settlement Strategy set out within Policy LDP DM 1 
of the LDP promotes sustainable levels of growth by steering significant development 
to our Main Towns and Settlements, rural growth is supported through identification 
of Key Rural Settlements and safeguards more sensitive and vulnerable areas within 
its various countryside designations. 
 
NPF4 Policy 3 seeks to protect biodiversity, reverse biodiversity loss and deliver 
positive effects from development and strengthen nature networks. 
 
In the case of the development proposed by this application, it is considered that 
there are no issues of compliance with Policy 3. No material biodiversity impacts 
have been identified in the assessment of this application by the Planning Authority 
and whilst no specific proposals for biodiversity improvements have been submitted 
it is considered that adequate and proportionate measures for biodiversity 
enhancement and protection could be secured via planning condition in the event 
that planning permission in principle were to be granted. The proposed development 
is therefore considered to be in compliance with NPF4 Policy 3 as underpinned by 
Local Development Plan Policy LDP 3, supplementary guidance SG LDP ENV 1, and 
Policy 73 of the proposed Local Development Plan 2. 
 
NPF4 Policy 4 seeks to protect, restore and enhance natural assets making best 
use of nature-based solutions. 
 
The application site lies within the Totamore Dunes and Loch Ballyhaugh Site of 
Special Scientific Interest, designated for its extensive dune and machair system and 
vascular plant assemblage. NatureScot have been consulted on the application and 
have stated that there are natural heritage interests of national importance on the 
site, but these will not be affected by the proposal. The development site is located 
outside of the key machair and dune habitat in an area that is considered important, 
principally for the nationally-rare orchid, Irish lady’s tresses (Spiranthes 
romanzoffiana). This plant’s preferred habitat is wet grassy places such as marshy 
meadows. The development site is not the preferred habitat and the records from 
NatureScot do not show any sightings closer than 50m from the proposed 
development site, therefore it is unlikely that the integrity of the Site of Special 
Scientific Interest would be affected by the proposed development. In the event that 
planning permission in principle were to be granted, a suitable condition could be 
attached to ensure that the storage of all building materials and associated 
equipment were to be within the boundary of the application site, thereby ensuring 

Page 128



Report of Handling Template for PPSL and Delegated Planning Applications – Updated 15.06.2023 

any disturbance would be contained within the plot boundary. The proposed 
development is considered to be in accordance with NPF4 Policy 4 as underpinned 
by Local Development Plan Policy LDP 3, supplementary guidance SG LDP ENV 1 
and SG LDP ENV 4, and Policy 75 of the proposed Local Development Plan 2.  
  
NPF4 Policy 5 seeks to protect carbon-rich soils, to restore peatlands and to 
minimise disturbance to soils from development. 
 
The development proposed by the current planning application seeks to develop an 
area of rough undeveloped ground. Whilst no evidence has been submitted by the 
applicant to suggest that the site would avoid the better quality agricultural land within 
the holding, the site itself has no agricultural land classification and is not within an 
identified area of peatland, carbon-rich soils or priority peatland habitat. The 
development proposed is therefore considered to be in accordance with NPF4 Policy 
5 as underpinned by Local Development Plan Policy LDP 3, supplementary guidance 
SG LDP ENV 11 and SG LDP SERV 9, and Policies 79 and 83 of the proposed Local 
Development Plan 2.  
 
NPF4 Policy 7 seeks to protect and enhance historic environment assets and places, 
and to enable positive change as a catalyst for the regeneration of places.  
 
The site the subject of the application lies within an area of archaeological sensitivity, 
with the potential for the site to feature buried archaeological remains. Additionally, 
the sites lies approximately 250 metres to the east of, and in full view from, An 
Caisteal, a prehistoric fort. The consultation response received from the West of 
Scotland Archaeology Service advises that the proposal would have a minor 
detrimental impact upon its landscape setting, however the prehistoric fort does not 
form a Scheduled Ancient Monument. The consultation response further states that 
the proposed development is of such a scale that ground disturbance could reveal 
buried archaeological remains. In the case of this application, a suitable condition 
could be attached to secure an archaeological watching brief in the event that 
planning permission in principle were to be granted. In this regard, the development 
would adhere to the requirements of NPF4 Policy 7(o) as underpinned by LDP Policy 
LDP 9, supplementary guidance SG LDP ENV 20, and Policy 21 of the proposed 
Local Development Plan 2, which seek to protect and preserve non-designated 
historic environment assets, places and their setting.  
 
NPF4 Policy 9 seeks to encourage, promote and facilitate the reuse of brownfield, 
vacant and derelict land and empty buildings, and to help reduce the need for 
greenfield development. 
 
The development proposed by this planning application is on a greenfield site. The 
site is located within the ‘Countryside Zone’ as designated within the Local 
Development Plan, where LDP Policies LDP STRAT 1 and LDP DM 1 give 
encouragement only to small scale development on appropriate infill, rounding-off, 
redevelopment, and change of use of existing buildings. In exceptional cases, 
development in the open countryside up to and including large scale may be 
supported on appropriate sites if this accords with an Area Capacity Evaluation. In 
the case of this application, the proposed site for a dwellinghouse would not 
represent an opportunity for infill, rounding-off, redevelopment, or the change of use 
of an existing building.  
 
With regard to ‘exceptional cases’, development in the open countryside up to and 
including large scale may occasionally be supported on appropriate sites, provided 
that the applicant has demonstrated a clear locational/operational requirement for 

Page 129



Report of Handling Template for PPSL and Delegated Planning Applications – Updated 15.06.2023 

the development and one which cannot be accommodated within the reasonable 
local vicinity of the proposed development site on a more suitable site within the 
settlement zone or in the less-sensitive countryside zone (the ‘Rural Opportunity 
Areas’). Where no such more appropriate development opportunity exists and where 
an applicant has successfully demonstrated an overriding ‘exceptional case’ for that 
development, such proposals are expected to accord with an ‘Area Capacity 
Evaluation’.  
 
SG LDP ACE 1 states that “The ‘exceptional case’ required to justify carrying out of 
an ACE is in all circumstances, either; the demonstration of a locational and/or 
operational need tied to a precise location which is agreed with and acceptable to 
the council, or; demonstration of an overriding economic or community benefit which 
outweighs other policies of the Local Development Plan and is agreed with and 
acceptable to the council.” In order for a development to qualify as an exceptional 
case, the following principles can be applied: 
 

 Exceptional cases should be fairly rare occurrences and should not become 
a matter of routine; 

 
 Exceptional cases should be supported with a business development 

plan/reasoned statement of justification; 
 

 Specific locational requirement – i.e. if it’s not there, then it can’t happen 
anywhere else; 

 
 Or that it directly supports an existing business whose continued operation 

would be jeopardised without the proposed development. 
 
The application site is a prominent area of open and gently undulating land slightly 
elevated above the Ballyhaugh Hebridean Centre. The site is located in mid Coll, 
which is characterised by open landscapes. There are long views across the 
distinctive open landscape and the existing settlement pattern is sparse. The Isle of 
Coll Landscape Capacity for New Housing Report states that the existing built 
development at Ballyhaugh acts as a point feature, where its scale suits the open 
landscape in which it sits. The landscape study does not recognise the site the 
subject of the current application as one within which there is capacity for new 
residential development and it is considered that the introduction of a dwelling within 
this location would not be cohesive with the landscape or settlement pattern and 
would not integrate with the character of the surrounding area. The dwelling would 
appear as unduly prominent and would therefore have a significant adverse impact 
upon the setting, and would unacceptably alter the existing settlement density of the 
area. 
 
The applicant has put forward a justification for the proposed development in an 
attempt to justify that this application represents an appropriate ‘exceptional case’ 
based on a locational/operational need for the development to be located upon this 
greenfield site within the designated ‘Countryside Zone’. This justification is 
summarised as follows: 
 

 The proposed development of the site with a dwellinghouse is required by the 
applicant based on a locational/operational need; 

 
 The applicant and the farm manager live two and three miles away from the 

application site at Ballyhaugh respectively. The farm at Ballyhaugh is 

Page 130



Report of Handling Template for PPSL and Delegated Planning Applications – Updated 15.06.2023 

currently run as a satellite farm to Ballard Farm, which is sited two miles away 
from the application site;  

 
 The applicant requires the dwellinghouse to support the agricultural activity 

at the site, which comprises breeding sheep and cattle, on the 91 hectare 
site.  The accommodation is required to support the agricultural activity at the 
site and address the lack of any available nearby housing.  

 
The Council’s Animal Health and Welfare Officer has been consulted on the 
application. The submitted Labour Report has been assessed and the consultation 
response supports the application on the basis of operational need. The Council’s 
Animal Health and Welfare Officer makes reference to the current farmer 
approaching retirement age and their association with an existing substantial farm,  
which is stated to make sufficient demands on his time. Whilst this is acknowledged, 
it is noted within the supporting information submitted by the applicant that the 
majority of the farm work surrounding the application site is undertaken by a farm 
manager, and not the applicant. The response from the Council’s Animal Health and 
Welfare Officer, in this case, does not acknowledge that both the applicant and the 
farm manager live within 3 miles of the proposed development site, nor is it 
acknowledged that there may be other suitable sites for development within the 
landholding. Whilst the application is supported by the Council’s Animal Health and 
Welfare Officer on the basis of operational need, there is no suggestion that the 
dwellinghouse associated with the farm has to be tied to this precise location, and 
could not be facilitated elsewhere within the landholding. There is also no suggestion 
that if the dwelling were to be sited in an alternative, nearby location, that the farming 
activity would be jeopardised.  
 
In consideration of the claim of an exceptional case based upon a 
locational/operational need, the evidence submitted is somewhat vague. The 
information provided with the application indicates that the agricultural holding covers 
an area of approximately 91 hectares, with both the applicant and the farm manager 
living within three miles of the proposed development site. The agricultural holding, 
under the ownership of the applicant, includes a number of ‘Rural Opportunity Areas’. 
The applicant has been advised that there are other potential sites within the wider 
agricultural holding which would avoid the more sensitive ‘Countryside Zone’, such 
as within the designated ‘Rural Opportunity Areas’, including immediately to the 
south and west of the site, and approximately 400 metres to the northeast. The 
applicant has discounted these sites for the following stated reason: 
 

 The area would not be suitable for construction due to its exposure to harsh 
northerly and easterly winter winds. The site’s elevated position would 
exacerbate this issue.  

 
Notwithstanding this, the Planning Authority remain of the view that the ‘Rural 
Opportunity Areas’, both immediately adjacent to the proposed application site, and 
400 metres to the northeast of the site, could potentially present an opportunity for 
the proposed development and that no convincing argument has been put forward 
to discount these sites. The applicant has been strongly encouraged to investigate 
development potential of a number of sites within these areas. The ‘Rural Opportunity 
Area’ sited approximately 400 metres to the northeast of the application site is 
located adjacent to the B8071 public road and features a number of existing 
dwellinghouses. It is not therefore considered that this site is completely unsuitable 
for construction, based on the claimed exposure to winds. It is not therefore accepted 
that the ‘Rural Opportunity Areas’ are undevelopable. There has been no evidence 
submitted to discount development potential of specific sites within these areas.  

Page 131



Report of Handling Template for PPSL and Delegated Planning Applications – Updated 15.06.2023 

 
Whilst the Planning Authority is keen to support local businesses and the reasonable 
aspirations of individuals, it is concluded in this case and after substantial effort to 
secure additional information, the case put forward by the applicant does not meet 
the ‘exceptional case’ criteria as the applicant’s need could be met from other sites 
in close proximity to the proposed development site and indeed within the wider 
agricultural landholding of the applicant. The proposed development does not 
constitute an ‘exceptional case’. There is no locational requirement for the proposed 
development to be sited within the designated ‘Countryside Zone’ on a site that does 
not present any opportunities for infill, rounding-off, redevelopment or a change of 
use of an existing building. Whilst the applicant has put forward an ‘exceptional case’, 
there is very limited established activity at this particular site within the wider 
landholding to potentially underpin a locational/operational need to justify the 
principle of the erection of a dwellinghouse at this specific location within the farm. 
Whilst it may be preferential and beneficial for the applicant to develop this particular 
site, the proposed case that has been forward by the applicant has not been backed 
up by sufficient evidence, despite such evidence having been requested. 
Additionally, the limited evidence provided does not suggest that the farming 
business would be jeopardised if the development were to be sited elsewhere within 
the farm holding in a less sensitive location.    
 
The proposed site does not present any opportunities for small scale development 
on appropriate infill, rounding off and redevelopment sites and changes of use of 
existing buildings. The proposed development does not constitute an ‘exceptional 
case’ which would warrant the undertaking of an Area Capacity Evaluation which 
could potentially allow the Planning Authority to support development on appropriate 
sites where the development accords with the Area Capacity Evaluation.  
 
With regard to the proposed Local Development Plan 2, the application site is located 
within an area designated as ‘Countryside Area’ where there is a presumption in 
favour of sustainable development where this is of an appropriate scale, design, 
siting and use for its countryside location. In the case of this application, the indicative 
scale and design of the proposed dwelling would be incongruous with the design, 
character and appearance of the built development that characterises the Isle of Coll. 
Moreover, the siting of such a large scale dwelling in this sensitive and exposed 
location would be unsustainable in terms of protecting the expansive landscapes 
which characterise this area of mid Coll. The siting, design and scale of the 
development would appear as insensitive and intrusive in this location, and the 
proposed development of this site would not therefore adhere to the requirements of 
the proposed Local Development Plan 2 Policy 02.  
 
As outlined above, the proposed development, on a greenfield site, would be contrary 
to NPF4 Policy 9(b), which requires development proposals on greenfield sites to be 
explicitly supported by policies in the Local Development Plan. The development 
would thereby fail to achieve the policy outcome aims which require development to 
be sited within an appropriate location to maximise the use of existing assets and 
minimise additional land take.  
 
NPF4 Policy 12 seeks to encourage, promote and facilitate development that is 
consistent with the waste hierarchy as defined within the policy document. 
 
The development the subject of this planning application seeks planning permission 
in principle for the erection of a single dwellinghouse. This is a development likely to 
generate waste when operational. Whilst no details have been provided regarding 
the proposed management of waste from the site, such details could be secured via 

Page 132



Report of Handling Template for PPSL and Delegated Planning Applications – Updated 15.06.2023 

condition in the event that planning permission in principle were to be granted. In this 
regard, the proposed development is considered to be in compliance with NPF4 
Policy 12(c) as underpinned by LDP Policy LDP 10, supplementary guidance SG 
LDP SERV 5(b), and Policy 63 of the proposed Local Development Plan 2.  
 
NPF4 Policy 13 seeks to encourage, promote and facilitate developments that 
prioritise walking, wheeling, cycling and public transport for everyday travel and 
reduce the need to travel unsustainably.  
 
The development the subject of this planning application seeks to establish the 
principle of a new single dwellinghouse.  The application proposes to construct a new 
private access track connecting to the existing private access track spurring from the 
B8071 public road. The Area Roads Authority have been consulted on the application 
and raised no objections to the proposed development subject to conditions 
regarding the upgrade of the access at the junction with the public road, the 
clearance and maintenance of visibility splays, the provision of a system or surface 
water drainage, the provision of a parking and turning area, and the provision of a 
bin store area. Subject to such details being secured via condition in the event that 
planning permission in principle were to be granted, the proposal is compliant with 
the terms of NPF4 Policy 13 as underpinned by Local Development Plan Policy LDP 
11, supplementary guidance SG LDP TRAN 2, SG LDP TRAN 4 and SG LDP TRAN 
6, and the relevant policies of the proposed Local Development Plan 2, which 
collectively seek to ensure that developments are served by a safe means of 
vehicular access and have an appropriate parking and turning area within the site.  
 
NPF4 Policy 14 seeks to encourage, promote and facilitate well designed 
development that makes successful places by taking a design-led approach and 
applying the ‘Place Principle’. 
 
NPF4 Policy 14(c) states that development proposals that are poorly designed, 
detrimental to the amenity of the surrounding area or inconsistent with the six 
qualities of successful place will not be supported. In this instance, whilst the 
application is seeking planning permission in principle, indicative details of the siting 
and design of the dwelling have been submitted. As per the indicative plans, the 
proposed dwelling would have a large footprint, covering an area of approximately 
156 square metres. The large massing of the dwelling would appear as unduly 
prominent at the site, unsympathetic to the surrounding expansive open landscape. 
The development would therefore have a significant impact upon the setting, being 
a large property that would impact upon the existing property at Ballyhaugh and the 
surrounding landscape. The massing of the proposed development is also 
considered to be inappropriate; the dwelling would have a deep plan and shallow 
dual-pitched roof with wide dormer windows. This would further exacerbate the 
adverse impact upon the setting of the proposed development site. The development 
would fail to integrate with the local vernacular, which is based on dwellings with a 
narrow linear plan, with the massing broken down into one and a half storey and 
single storey elements. The proposed dormer windows upon the principal elevation 
would be over scaled and would dominate the roof of which they would form a part 
of. The indicative design of the proposed dwelling would lack local character and in 
this regard would appear as suburban and inappropriate to the rural location. Whilst 
it is acknowledged that the exact details of the design of the proposed dwellinghouse 
could be secured via condition, to be addressed by way of future application(s) for 
approval of matters specified in conditions, the inappropriate design indicates that 
there has been insufficient regard to the character and appearance of the immediate 
and wider surroundings of the application site.  
 

Page 133



Report of Handling Template for PPSL and Delegated Planning Applications – Updated 15.06.2023 

In addition to the above, however, it is important to note that the impact of the 
proposed development upon the landscape and character of the surrounding area is 
not the sole determining factor in the consideration of this application. Regardless of 
any interpretation of the impact of the proposed development upon the landscape, 
the development does not meet the fundamental key planning policy test for the 
Council’s established and adopted settlement strategy for the planned growth of 
Argyll and Bute as set out within Policy LDP DM 1. Neither, therefore, does the 
proposed development accord with the sustainable development aims of the Council 
as established within adopted key planning Policy LDP STRAT 1 which underpins 
NPF4 Policy 14.  
 
The proposed development fails to pay regard to the wider surroundings of the site 
in terms of connectivity, the existing character, scale and density, and views. The 
site is open and exposed and the proposed development would be incompatible with 
the existing character of the area, and is therefore contrary to Policies 05, 08, 09 and 
10 of the proposed Local Development Plan 2.  
 
NPF4 Policy 15 seeks to encourage, promote and facilitate the application of the 
Place Principle and create connected and compact neighbourhoods where people 
can meet the majority of their daily needs within a reasonable distance of their home.  
 
In terms of the adopted settlement strategy, the site of the proposed development is 
within the ‘Countryside Zone’ where LDP Policies LDP STRAT 1 and LDP DM 1 give 
encouragement only to small scale development on appropriate infill, rounding-off, 
redevelopment sites, or changes of use of existing buildings. The proposed 
development site would fail to respect the existing established settlement pattern and 
in this regard the development would fail to connect with any existing neighbourhood 
or settlement. The proposal would therefore fail to meet the requirements of NPF4 
Policy 15 as underpinned by the settlement strategy policy contained within Policies 
LDP DM 1, LDP 8, LDP 10 and LDP 11 of the Local Development Plan. 
 
NPF4 Policy 16 seeks to encourage, promote and facilitate the delivery of more high 
quality, affordable and sustainable homes in the right locations and providing choice 
of tenure to meet diverse housing needs. 
 
NPF4 Policy 16(f) states that development proposals for new homes on land not 
allocated for housing in the LDP will only be supported in limited circumstances 
where: 
 

i) the proposal is supported by an agreed timescale for build-out; and  
 
ii) the proposal is otherwise consistent with the plan spatial strategy and 

other relevant policies including local living and 20 minute 
neighbourhoods 

 
iii) and either: 

 
 delivery of sites is happening earlier than identified in the deliverable housing 

land pipeline. This will be determined by reference to two consecutive years 
of the Housing Land Audit evidencing substantial delivery earlier than pipeline 
timescales and that general trend being sustained; or 

 
 the proposal is consistent with policy on rural homes; or 

 

Page 134



Report of Handling Template for PPSL and Delegated Planning Applications – Updated 15.06.2023 

 the proposal is for smaller scale opportunities within an existing settlement 
boundary; or  

 
 the proposal is for the delivery of less than 50 affordable homes as part of a 

local authority supported affordable housing plan. 
 
In the case of this application, whilst the timescale for build-out could be secured via 
condition to be addressed by way of future application(s) for approval of matters 
specified in conditions, the application site is not consistent with the local 
development plan spatial strategy or other relevant policies. The development of the 
site the subject of this application is directly contrary to the local development plan 
spatial strategy. The proposed development is therefore considered to be 
inconsistent with NPF4 Policy 16 as underpinned by Local Development Plan 
Policies LDP DM 1 and LDP 8 and supplementary guidance SG LDP HOU 1. 
 
NPF4 Policy 17 seeks to encourage, promote and facilitate the delivery of more high 
quality, affordable and sustainable rural homes in the right locations. 
 
The development the subject of this planning application is located within a defined 
‘remote rural area’ where Policy 17(c) offers support only where such proposals: 
 

i. Support and sustain existing fragile communities; 
 

ii. Support identified local housing outcomes; and 
 

iii. Are suitable in terms of location, access and environmental impact.  
 
The proposed development seeks planning permission in principle for a single 
dwellinghouse. It is acknowledged that the proposed development would contribute 
to housing for the existing local community, however there has been no overriding 
evidence to suggest that the dwelling could not be sited elsewhere within the 
applicant’s wider agricultural holding in less sensitive and more sustainable 
locations. Nor has there been any evidence provided to suggest that if the dwelling 
were to be sited elsewhere, the existing farming activity would be jeopardised. It is 
not therefore considered that the proposed development would offer any overriding 
opportunity to sustain the existing community. In addition, as outlined above, the 
siting of the development is considered unsustainable due to its prominent location 
and the resulting impact upon the sensitive and vulnerable isolated landscape. The 
proposed development would therefore be contrary to the aims of NPF4 Policy 17 as 
underpinned by Local Development Plan Policy LDP DM 1.  
 
NPF4 Policy 18 seeks to encourage, promote and facilitate an infrastructure first 
approach to land use planning. 
 
The development the subject of this planning application proposes a private drainage 
system and connection to the public water supply network. As the application is 
seeking planning permission in principle, only indicative details of the proposed 
drainage arrangements have been submitted with the application, with these being 
subject of approval through a further planning application(s). With a condition to 
secure the details of the proposed private drainage system, the proposal is 
considered to be consistent with the broad aims of NPF4 Policy 18 as underpinned 
by Local Development Plan Policies LDP 11, supplementary guidance SG LDP 
SERV 1, and Policy 60 of the proposed Local Development Plan 2.  
 

Page 135



Report of Handling Template for PPSL and Delegated Planning Applications – Updated 15.06.2023 

NPF4 Policy 22 seeks to strengthen resilience to flood risk and to ensure that water 
resources are used efficiently and sustainably. 
 
The development the subject of this planning application proposes connection to the 
public water supply network. Scottish Water have been consulted on the application 
and have stated that whilst there is no objection to the application, there is no public 
Scottish Water water infrastructure within the vicinity of the proposed development 
site. The applicant has not demonstrated that water for drinking water purposes will 
be sourced from a sustainable water source that is resilient to periods of water 
scarcity. In this regard, the proposal would directly fail to meet the requirements of 
NPF4 Policy 22 as underpinned by LPD Policies LDP 10 and LDP 11, supplementary 
guidance SG LDP SERV 6, and Policy 58 of the proposed Local Development Plan 
2, which seek to ensure the efficient and sustainable use of water resources.  
 
NPF4 Policy 29 seeks to encourage rural economic activity, innovation and 
diversification whilst ensuring that the distinctive character of the rural area and the 
service function of small towns, natural assets and cultural heritage are safeguarded 
and enhanced.  
 
NPF4 Policy 29(a) offers support to development proposals that contribute to the 
viability, sustainability and diversity of rural communities and the local rural economy. 
This includes support for farms, crofts and other land use businesses. However, 
NPF4 Policy 29 also requires such developments to accord with the spatial strategy 
outlined within the local development plan. In the case of this application, whilst the 
siting of a dwellinghouse at the application site may be preferential and beneficial for 
the applicant, the ‘exceptional case’ presented does not provide sufficient evidence 
to support an overriding locational need to have the development at this specific site. 
The development would therefore fail to comply with this aspect of NPF4 Policy 29. 
 
With regard to NPF4 Policy 29(c), development proposals in remote rural areas, 
where new development can often help to sustain fragile communities, will be 
supported where the proposal:  
 

i. will support local employment; 
 
ii. supports and sustains existing communities, for example through 

provision of digital infrastructure; and  
 

iii. is suitable in terms of location, access, siting, design and environmental 
impact 

 
In the case of this application, it is acknowledged that the siting of a dwellinghouse 
at the application site may be preferential and beneficial for the applicant to support 
the existing agricultural activity. However, there is insufficient supporting justification 
to suggest that the development is required in this exact location. In this regard, the 
contribution of the proposed development to supporting local employment and the 
existing community would appear to be limited. The information provided with the 
application advises that those associated with the agricultural business live no more 
than 3 miles from the proposed development site. Notwithstanding this, discussions 
have been undertaken with the applicant in an attempt to find alternative provision 
for the siting of a dwellinghouse within reasonable proximity to the claimed 
agricultural activity. The suggested development sites are in locations within the 
applicant’s ownership and on sites that would accord with the adopted settlement 
strategy. However, in response to such requests for considerations of alternative 
sites for the proposed development, there has been minimal analysis of other 

Page 136



Report of Handling Template for PPSL and Delegated Planning Applications – Updated 15.06.2023 

potential development sites, with the applicant stating that all other sites would be 
unsuitable for development due to their exposure. This is disputed as at least one of 
the potential development areas features a number of existing dwellinghouses.  
 
As previously outlined, the proposed development site is unsuitable in terms of 
location due its undeveloped nature and its sensitivity to inappropriate development 
that would fail to protect or conserve the important landscape characteristics of the 
wider area. The proposed development would not therefore adhere to the 
requirements of NPF4 Policy 29 as underpinned by Local Development Plan Policies 
LDP 3, LDP 5, LDP 8 and LDP 9, supplementary guidance SG LDP BUS 5, and 
Policy 22 of the proposed Local Development Plan 2.   
 
Notwithstanding the above requirements of NPF4 Policy 29, this application for 
planning permission in principle for the development of the site with the erection of a 
dwellinghouse and associate services would represent an inappropriate form of 
development within the ‘Countryside Zone’ designation which would be detrimental 
to the character and appearance of the wider landscape and contrary to the policies 
set out within the National Planning Framework 4 and the adopted Local 
Development Plan and associated supplementary guidance.   
 
There is sufficient alignment in the assessment of the proposal against both 
provisions of the current Local Development Plan and the Proposed Local 
Development Plan 2 (as modified) that a decision can be made under the current 
development plan without giving rise to fundamental conflict with PLDP2 (as 
modified). 

 
 
(Q) Is the proposal consistent with the Development Plan: Yes No  
 
 
(R) Reasons why Planning Permission or Planning Permission in Principle Should 

be Granted: 
 

 See reasons for refusal set out below.  
 
 
(S) Reasoned justification for a departure to the provisions of the Development 

Plan 
 

N/A 
 
 
(T) Need for notification to Scottish Ministers or Historic Environment Scotland: 

Yes No  
 
 
Author of Report: Emma Shaw Date: 07.09.2023 
 
Reviewing Officer: Tim Williams Date: 12.09.2023 
 
Fergus Murray 
Head of Development & Economic Growth 

 
  

Page 137



Report of Handling Template for PPSL and Delegated Planning Applications – Updated 15.06.2023 

REASONS FOR REFUSAL RELATIVE TO APPLICATION REF. NO. 22/02078/PPP 
 
1. The proposed development on this greenfield site conflicts with National Planning 

Policy NPF4 Policy 9. 
 

NPF4 Policy 9 (b) states that proposals on greenfield sites will not be supported unless 
the site has been allocated for development or the proposal is explicitly supported in 
the LDP. 
 
In this case, the development proposed within this application for planning permission 
in principle would constitute the introduction of a significant built form onto an open 
and exposed site designated as ‘Countryside Zone’ within the adopted Argyll and Bute 
Local Development Plan 2015, and as ‘Countryside Area’ within the proposed Argyll 
and Bute Local Development Plan 2. 
 
The proposed development site has no development allocation in either the current or 
the proposed LDP. 
 
Adopted LDP Policies LDP STRAT 1 and LDP DM 1 give encouragement within the 
‘Countryside Zone’ to small scale development on appropriate infill, rounding-off, 
redevelopment or change of use of existing buildings. In ‘exceptional cases’, 
development in the open countryside up to and including large scale may occasionally 
be supported on appropriate sites, provided that the applicant has demonstrated a 
clear locational/operational requirement for the development and one which cannot be 
accommodated within the reasonable local vicinity of the proposed development on a 
more suitable site within the settlement zone or in the less-sensitive countryside zone 
(the ‘Rural Opportunity Areas’). The site does not present an opportunity for infill, 
rounding-off or redevelopment. The ‘exceptional case’ presented does not suitably 
demonstrate a specific locational requirement for the proposed development, or 
evidence that any existing activity would be jeopardised without the proposed 
development. Not does the ‘exceptional case’ sufficiently demonstrate that the 
development could not be sited within reasonable local vicinity of the proposed 
development sited on a more suitable site.  
 
With regard to the proposed Local Development Plan 2, the application site is located 
within an area designated as ‘Countryside Area’ where there is a presumption in favour 
of sustainable development where this is of an appropriate scale, design, siting and 
use for its countryside location. The indicative scale and design of the proposed 
dwelling would be incongruous with the design, character and appearance of the built 
development that characterises the Isle of Coll. The siting of such a large scale 
dwelling in this sensitive and exposed location would be unsustainable in terms of 
protecting the expansive landscapes which characterise this area of mid Coll. The 
siting, design and scale of the development would appear as insensitive and intrusive 
in this location, and the proposed development of this site would not therefore adhere 
to the requirements of the proposed Local Development Plan 2 Policy 02.  
 
There is therefore no support for the proposed development in this location within 
either the adopted or proposed LDP and the development is therefore contrary to 
NPF4 Policy 9 as underpinned by LDP Policies LDP STRAT 1 and LDP DM 1 and 
LDP2 Policy 02. 

  
2. Notwithstanding Reason 1 above, it is considered that the proposed development 

would introduce an inappropriate form of built development that would have an 
unacceptable and materially harmful impact upon the character and quality of the wider 
landscape. 

Page 138



Report of Handling Template for PPSL and Delegated Planning Applications – Updated 15.06.2023 

 
The proposed dwelling would appear as unduly prominent at the site, unsympathetic 
to the surrounding expansive open landscape. The development would have a 
significant impact upon the setting and the surrounding landscape. The indicative 
design of the proposed dwelling would lack local character and in this regard would 
appear as suburban and inappropriate to the rural location. The inappropriate design 
indicates that there has been insufficient regard to the character and appearance of 
the immediate and wider surroundings of the application site.  
 
The proposed development is therefore considered to be in conflict with NPF4 Policy 
14 as underpinned by Local Development Plan Policy 9, supplementary guidance SG 
LDP ENV 14, and Policies 05, 08, 09 and 10 of the proposed Local Development Plan 
2.  

  
 
  

Page 139



Report of Handling Template for PPSL and Delegated Planning Applications – Updated 15.06.2023 

APPENDIX TO DECISION REFUSAL NOTICE 
 
Appendix relative to application 22/02078/PPP 
 
(A) Has the application been the subject of any “non-material” 

amendment in terms of Section 32A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) to the initial 
submitted plans during its processing: 

Yes No  

 
(B) The reason why planning permission has been approved:  

 
See reasons for refusal set out above. 

Page 140



Page 141



REASONS FOR REFUSAL RELATIVE TO APPLICATION NUMBER: 22/02078/PPP 
 

 
1. The proposed development on this greenfield site conflicts with National Planning 

Policy NPF4 Policy 9. 
 

NPF4 Policy 9 (b) states that proposals on greenfield sites will not be supported 
unless the site has been allocated for development or the proposal is explicitly 
supported in the LDP. 
 
In this case, the development proposed within this application for planning 
permission in principle would constitute the introduction of a significant built form 
onto an open and exposed site designated as ‘Countryside Zone’ within the adopted 
Argyll and Bute Local Development Plan 2015, and as ‘Countryside Area’ within the 
proposed Argyll and Bute Local Development Plan 2. 
 
The proposed development site has no development allocation in either the current 
or the proposed LDP. 
 
Adopted LDP Policies LDP STRAT 1 and LDP DM 1 give encouragement within the 
‘Countryside Zone’ to small scale development on appropriate infill, rounding-off, 
redevelopment or change of use of existing buildings. In ‘exceptional cases’, 
development in the open countryside up to and including large scale may 
occasionally be supported on appropriate sites, provided that the applicant has 
demonstrated a clear locational/operational requirement for the development and 
one which cannot be accommodated within the reasonable local vicinity of the 
proposed development on a more suitable site within the settlement zone or in the 
less-sensitive countryside zone (the ‘Rural Opportunity Areas’). The site does not 
present an opportunity for infill, rounding-off or redevelopment. The ‘exceptional 
case’ presented does not suitably demonstrate a specific locational requirement for 
the proposed development, or evidence that any existing activity would be 
jeopardised without the proposed development. Not does the ‘exceptional case’ 
sufficiently demonstrate that the development could not be sited within reasonable 
local vicinity of the proposed development sited on a more suitable site.  
 
With regard to the proposed Local Development Plan 2, the application site is 
located within an area designated as ‘Countryside Area’ where there is a 
presumption in favour of sustainable development where this is of an appropriate 
scale, design, siting and use for its countryside location. The indicative scale and 
design of the proposed dwelling would be incongruous with the design, character 
and appearance of the built development that characterises the Isle of Coll. The 
siting of such a large scale dwelling in this sensitive and exposed location would be 
unsustainable in terms of protecting the expansive landscapes which characterise 
this area of mid Coll. The siting, design and scale of the development would appear 
as insensitive and intrusive in this location, and the proposed development of this 
site would not therefore adhere to the requirements of the proposed Local 
Development Plan 2 Policy 02.  
 
There is therefore no support for the proposed development in this location within 
either the adopted or proposed LDP and the development is therefore contrary to 

Page 142



NPF4 Policy 9 as underpinned by LDP Policies LDP STRAT 1 and LDP DM 1 and 
LDP2 Policy 02. 

  
2. Notwithstanding Reason 1 above, it is considered that the proposed development 

would introduce an inappropriate form of built development that would have an 
unacceptable and materially harmful impact upon the character and quality of the 
wider landscape. 
 
The proposed dwelling would appear as unduly prominent at the site, unsympathetic 
to the surrounding expansive open landscape. The development would have a 
significant impact upon the setting and the surrounding landscape. The indicative 
design of the proposed dwelling would lack local character and in this regard would 
appear as suburban and inappropriate to the rural location. The inappropriate design 
indicates that there has been insufficient regard to the character and appearance of 
the immediate and wider surroundings of the application site.  
 
The proposed development is therefore considered to be in conflict with NPF4 Policy 
14 as underpinned by Local Development Plan Policy 9, supplementary guidance 
SG LDP ENV 14, and Policies 05, 08, 09 and 10 of the proposed Local Development 
Plan 2.  

 
 
 
 

Page 143



NOTES TO APPLICANT (1) RELATIVE TO APPLICATION NUMBER 22/02078/PPP 
 

  
 
1. If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision to refuse permission for or approval required by 

a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval 
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case 
under Section 43A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) 
within three months from the date of this notice. A Notice of Review request must be 
submitted on an official form which can be obtained by contacting The Local Review Body, 
Committee Services, Argyll and Bute Council, Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT or by 
email to localreviewprocess@argyll-bute.gov.uk  
 

2. If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions and the owner of 
the  land claims that the land has become incapable of reasonably beneficial use in its 
existing state, and it cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use by the 
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner of the 
land may serve on the planning authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of the 
landowner’s interest in the land, in accordance with Part 5 of the Town and Country 
Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended). 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 144



APPENDIX TO DECISION REFUSAL NOTICE 
 
Appendix relative to application: 22/02078/PPP 
 
 
A. Has the application been the subject of any “non-material” amendment in terms of 

Section 32A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) to 
the initial submitted plans during its processing. 

 
No  

 
B.  Is the proposal a departure from the Development Plan: 
 

 
No 

 
If yes, state level of departure: 

 
No Departure 

 
C.  Summary justification statement for refusal of planning permission in principle  
 
The proposal is considered to be contrary to National Planning Framework 4 Policies 9, 14, 15, 16, 
17, 22, and 29 and Policies LDP DM 1, LDP STRAT 1, LDP 3, LDP 5, LDP 8, LDP 9, LDP 10 and 
LDP 11 and Supplementary Guidance SG LDP ENV 14, SG LDP ACE 1, SG LDP BUS 5, SG LDP 
HOU 1 and SG LDP SERV 6 of the Argyll and Bute Local Development Plan 2015, and there are 
no other material considerations of sufficient significance to indicate that it would be appropriate to 
grant planning permission in this instance as a departure to the Development Plan having regard to 
Section 25 of the Act. 
 

Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank



TmC Planning 

TmC Planning & Property
Development Ltd

Land North of Ballyhaugh Outdoor
Centre Isle of Coll Argyle and Bute

BACK ELEVATION

MR MORRISON
Land North of Ballyhough Outdoor
Centre Isle of Coll Argyle and Bute
PA78 6TB

1:50 19/01/2022 MD TC

00MORR/22A009

P
age 147



TmC Planning 

TmC Planning & Property
Development Ltd

Land North of Ballyhaugh Outdoor
Centre Isle of Coll Argyle and Bute

Location Plan 2

MR MORRISON
Land North of Ballyhough Outdoor
Centre Isle of Coll Argyle and Bute
PA78 6TB

1:12500 01/11/2022 MD TC

BMORR/22A002

P
age 148



TmC Planning 

TmC Planning & Property
Development Ltd

Land North of Ballyhaugh Outdoor
Centre Isle of Coll Argyle and Bute

Location Plan 2

MR MORRISON
Land North of Ballyhough Outdoor
Centre Isle of Coll Argyle and Bute
PA78 6TB

1:12500 13/12/2022 MD TC

CMORR/22A002

P
age 149



C
attleG

rid

C
attleG

rid

ETL

ETL

C
G

Sand

Sand

Broadhills

BlàrRuadh

M
achairM

hòr

Shingle

M
achairM

hòr

SheepDip

Caus e

Sand

Sand

TràighHogh

Sand

Sand

Sand

Sand

BàghCraim
neach

M
LW

S

Spreads

Spreads

AlltMòr

Fiaranuis

Bàgh

H
oghBay

MLWS

MLW
S

M
LW

S

Spreads

M
H

W
S

M
H

W
S

MHWS

M
H

W
S

M
H

W
S

MHWS

M
H

W
S

SlocM
òr

Rubha

Sand

Boulders

Hogh
Sand

Boul

Sand

Rock

Rock

Rock

Rock

Sand

Rock

Boulders

TràighHogh

Rock

Sand

SlocSturrach

Rock

RubhananUan

Rock

Rock

Drain

Ponds

D
rain

ClabhachBurn

Drain

Burn

Clabhach

Drain

W
ell

Drain

Pond

Drain

Drain

Drain

D
rain

Drain

Issues

D
rain

Drain

PondDrain

Drain

D
rain

DrainDrain

Drain

W
ell

Drain

Pond

Drain

Issues

Drain

W
ell

Drain

W
ell

D
rain

Drain

Drain

W
ell

Issues

Drain

D
rain

Drain

Issues

Pond

Drain

Drain

Issues

Drain

Drain

Drain

Drain

Spreads

Drain

Drain

Drain

Drain

Pond

Drain

Issues

Ponds

Drain

Drain

Drain

Drain

W
ell

Drain

D
rain

Drain

Drain

Drain

Drain

D
rain

D
rain

Drain

Drain

Drain

Drain

Drain

D
rain

Drain

D
rain

Drain Drains

Drains

Drain

Issues

Drain

Drain

Drain

D
rain

D
rain

Drain

Drain

Drain

Drain

D
rain

Drain

Drain

Spreads

Collects

Drain

Pond

Drain

D
rains

Drain

Drain

Drain

Drains

Drains

Ballyhaugh

Loch

Pond

Drain

Collects

Drain

Drain

Drain

Pond

Ford

Cinneachan

Drain

Pond

W
ell

Lochnan

Drain

D
rain

Drains

Drain

Allta'Mhuilinn

Drains

Drain

Drain

Pond

Drain

Pond

H
ogh

Ben

Feadan

Clabhach

U
ig

U
ig

Cnoc
a'

Chonaisg

Cnoc

Cnoc

Ballard

M
eineach

Carnan

Bàna

CnocnaM
òine

Broadhills

CnocM
òr

Càrna'Bharraich

CreaganAraich

Beinn

Tioraidh

D
unes

Cave

CoastalSlope

CnocanLoisgte

CnocnaR
ainich

Cnocnan

CnocnaD
ruideige

Tota

CreaganFhireoin

Acha

B
an-rìgh

C
lachna

C
airn

S
tandingS

tones

D
ùnB

eic

(rem
ainsof)

Fort

A
nC

aisteal

(rem
ainsof)

S
tone

S
tanding

C
airns

D
un(rem

ainsof)

D
unanA

chaidh

Track

Track

Track

Track

Track

Track

Track

Track

Track

Track

Track

Track

Track

Track

Track

Track

Track

Path

B8070

B8071

C
airn

FB

LB

FB

LB

FB

W
indSock

FB

FB

W
ind

Turbine

W
indSock

FB

FB

C
airn

D
am

FB

C
airn

BeinM
eanach

TighnaClabbach

Clabbach

Fearann

Beag

The
R

oundhouse
H

illCottage

U
igCottage

Arileod

21

Broadhills

Ballard

Totronald

D
rim

cruy

Lonban

BarrnaG
reine

Term
inal

Building

LonbanCottage

Tighnacraig
H

ouse

TighN
a

CraigByre

FeallFarm

CollAerodrom
e

ArrolH
ouse

M
ossfield

Totam
ore

BeinnTioraidh

12

Ballyhaugh

Centre

H
ebridean

Totam
ore

Acha
Farm

H
ouse

M
illCottage

AchaM
ill

H
ouse

Acha

PARKING

PARKING

PARKING

Proposed Soakway Proposed Septic Tank
8500

5500

Area w
here cattle is

fed silage over w
inter

Proposed Property

Farm
 Boundary

Line

O
w

ned Boundary
LineO

w
ned Boundary

Line

B8070

B8071

Tm
C

 Planning & Property D
evelopm

ent Ltd

The Barn, N
etherton Farm

, W
estcraigs R

oad
H

arthill, Shotts, M
L7 5TT

Tel: 0131 210 0400

w
w

w
.tm

cplanning.co.uk

Planning
&

Property D
evelopm

ent
Lim

ited

M
r. M

orrison 

Tm
C

 Planning & Property D
evelopm

ent Ltd

Land N
orth of Ballyhaugh O

utdoor C
entre Isle of C

oll Argyle 
and Bute, C

entre Isle of C
oll Argyle and Bute,

PA78 6TB
D

w
elling 

Location Plan 2
--

A2 1:12'500 
09-02-2023

M
D

-

22-0122
002

D

Scale 1:12 500 in m
eters

0
100

200
300

400
500

1250

N
O

R
TH

Location Plan
01

Scale 1:12'500 @
 A

2

P
age 150



TmC Planning 

TmC Planning & Property
Development Ltd

Land North of Ballyhaugh Outdoor
Centre Isle of Coll Argyle and Bute

1ST FLOOR PLAN

MR MORRISON
Land North of Ballyhough Outdoor
Centre Isle of Coll Argyle and Bute
PA78 6TB

1:100 19/01/2022 MD TC

00MORR/22A005

P
age 151



TmC Planning 

TmC Planning & Property
Development Ltd

Land North of Ballyhaugh Outdoor
Centre Isle of Coll Argyle and Bute

FRONT ELEVATION

MR MORRISON
Land North of Ballyhough Outdoor
Centre Isle of Coll Argyle and Bute
PA78 6TB

1:50 19/01/2022 MD TC

00MORR/22A007

P
age 152



TmC Planning 

TmC Planning & Property
Development Ltd

Land North of Ballyhaugh Outdoor
Centre Isle of Coll Argyle and Bute

GF PLAN

MR MORRISON
Land North of Ballyhough Outdoor
Centre Isle of Coll Argyle and Bute
PA78 6TB

1:100 19/01/2022 MD TC

00MORR/22A004

P
age 153



TmC Planning 

TmC Planning & Property
Development Ltd

Land North of Ballyhaugh Outdoor
Centre Isle of Coll Argyle and Bute

LEFT ELEVATION

MR MORRISON
Land North of Ballyhough Outdoor
Centre Isle of Coll Argyle and Bute
PA78 6TB

1:50 19/01/2022 MD TC

00MORR/22A008

P
age 154



TmC Planning 

TmC Planning & Property
Development Ltd

Land North of Ballyhaugh Outdoor
Centre Isle of Coll Argyle and Bute

RIGHT  ELEVATION

MR MORRISON
Land North of Ballyhough Outdoor
Centre Isle of Coll Argyle and Bute
PA78 6TB

1:50 19/01/2022 MD TC

00MORR/22A010

P
age 155



TmC Planning 

TmC Planning & Property
Development Ltd

Land North of Ballyhaugh Outdoor
Centre Isle of Coll Argyle and Bute

ROOF PLAN

MR MORRISON
Land North of Ballyhough Outdoor
Centre Isle of Coll Argyle and Bute
PA78 6TB

1:100 19/01/2022 MD TC

00MORR/22A006

P
age 156



Loch

Ballyhaugh

Track

B 80
71 TmC Planning 

TmC Planning & Property
Development Ltd

Land North of Ballyhaugh Outdoor
Centre Isle of Coll Argyle and Bute

SITE PLAN

MR MORRISON
Land North of Ballyhough Outdoor
Centre Isle of Coll Argyle and Bute
PA78 6TB

1:500 01/11/2022 MD TC

BMORR/22A003

P
age 157

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
Proposed Soakway 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
Proposed Septic Tank  

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Proposed  Access Road

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
REV:

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Notes:

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
DRAWING NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
PROJECT REF:

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
SCALE AT A3:

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
SITE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
STATUS:

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
DESIGNERS:

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
NOTES Revision B = Red line boundary added to  B = Red line boundary added to B = Red line boundary added to  = Red line boundary added to = Red line boundary added to  Red line boundary added to Red line boundary added to  line boundary added to line boundary added to  boundary added to boundary added to  added to added to  to to show access to road B8072

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
DRAWING STAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
Unit 117 Eucal Business  Centre, Craigshill Road, Livingston EH54 5DT 0131 210 0400 www.tmcplanning.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
SCALE 1:500 in metres



T
his page is intentionally left blank



STATEMENT OF CASE 

FOR  

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL  
LOCAL REVIEW BODY  

 

23/0009/LRB 

REFUSAL OF PLANNING PERMISSION IN 

PRINCIPLE FOR SITE FOR THE ERECTION OF 

DWELLINGHOUSE TO BE USED IN ASSOCIATION 

WITH FARMING BUSINESS – PLANNING 

APPLICATION REFERENCE 22/02078/PPP 

LAND NORTH OF BALLYHOUGH OUTDOOR 

CENTRE, ISLE OF COLL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 159 Agenda Item 3b



STATEMENT OF CASE 
 
The Planning Authority is Argyll and Bute Council (‘the Council’). The appellant is Mr Allan 

Brodie (‘the appellant’). 

Planning permission in principle 22/02078/PPP for the site for the erection of a dwellinghouse 

to be used in association with a farming business at land to the north of Ballyhough Outdoor 

Centre, Isle of Coll, Argyll and Bute (‘the appeal site’) was refused by the Planning Service 

under delegated powers on the 12th September 2023.  

This decision is the subject of referral to a Local Review Body. 
 
 

DESCRIPTION OF SITE 
 

The application site comprises an area of undeveloped and open land to the north of the long 

established Ballyhaugh Hebridean Centre. The site is accessed via a private unmade track 

spurring from the public B8071 road. The surrounding area is rural and undeveloped in 

character.  

 

STATUTORY BASIS ON WHICH THE APPEAL SHOULD BE DECIDED 
 

Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 provides that where, in 
making any determination under the Planning Act, regard is to be had to the development 
plan, and all other material planning considerations and the determination shall  be made 
in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. This is the 
test for this application. 

 

STATEMENT OF CASE 
 

Argyll and Bute Council considers the determining issues in relation to the case are as follows: 
 

• Whether the proposed development is acceptable on a greenfield site within the 
‘Countryside Zone’ where National Planning Framework 4 Policy 9(b) requires 
development proposals on greenfield sites to be explicitly supported by policies in the 
Local Development Plan, and where Local Development Plan Policies LDP STRAT 1 
and LDP DM 1 support small scale development on appropriate infill, rounding off and 
redevelopment sites and changes of use of existing buildings, and where, in 
exceptional cases, development in the open countryside up to and including large 
scale may be supported on appropriate sites if this accords with an Area Capacity 
Evaluation.  
 

• Notwithstanding the above, whether the development is considered to be materially 
harmful to the landscape character, appearance and qualities of the area and is 
therefore in conflict with NPF4 Policy 14 as underpinned by Local Development Plan 
Policy 9, supplementary guidance SG LDP ENV 14, and Policies 05, 08, 09 and 10 of 
the proposed Local Development Plan 2. 

 
The Report of Handing (Appendix A) sets out the Council’s full assessment of the application 
in terms of these key determining issues and concludes that: 
 

Page 160



Firstly, the proposal does not accord with NPF4 Policy 9 as underpinned by Local 
Development Plan Policies LDP STRAT 1 and LDP DM 1 and Policy 02 of the proposed Local 
Development Plan 2. The proposed development would be on a greenfield site within the 
‘Countryside Zone’ as designated in the adopted Local Development Plan and within the 
‘Countryside Area’ as designated in the proposed Local Development Plan 2. Within the 
adopted Local Development Plan, support is given to small scale development on appropriate 
infill, rounding off and redevelopment sites and changes of use of existing buildings. In 
exceptional cases, development in the open countryside up to and including large scale may 
be supported on appropriate sites if this accords with an Area Capacity Evaluation. The 
proposed development does not relate to infill, rounding off, redevelopment, or the change of 
use of an existing building. The ‘exceptional case’ presented does not suitably demonstrate a 
specific locational or operational need tied to a precise location that is agreed with or 
acceptable to the Planning Authority, nor is it evidenced that any existing activity would be 
jeopardised without the proposed development. There is no demonstration of an overriding 
economic or community benefit which outweighs other policies of the Local Development Plan 
and is agreed with and acceptable to the Planning Authority. 
 
Secondly, the proposed development would be sited upon an open site within the surrounding 
expansive landscape and would be materially harmful to the landscape character and qualities 
of the area. The proposed development would be in direct conflict with NPF4 Policy 4 which 
states that development proposals will be designed to improve the quality of an area whether 
in urban or rural locations, and regardless of scale. In this case, the proposed development 
would introduce an inappropriate form of built development that would appear as unduly 
prominent at the site and unsympathetic to the landscape setting; the indicative design of the 
proposed dwellinghouse would lack local character and in this regard would appear as 
suburban and inappropriate to the rural location. The proposed development is therefore 
considered to be in conflict with NPF4 Policy 14 as underpinned by Local Development Plan 
Policy 9, supplementary guidance SG LDP ENV 14, and Policies 05, 08, 09 and 10 of the 
proposed Local Development Plan 2. 
 
Furthermore, it is not considered that the highlighted unacceptable impacts of the proposed 
development can be appropriately mitigated through the use of planning conditions.  
 
 

REQUIREMENT FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND A HEARING 
 
It is not considered that any additional information is required in light of the appellant’s 
submission.  The issues raised were assessed in the Report of Handling which is contained 
in Appendix A. As such it is considered that Members have all the information they need to 
determine the case. Given the above and that the proposal has no complex or challenging 
issues, and has not been the subject of any significant public representation, it is not 
considered that a Hearing is required.  
 
 

COMMENT ON APPELLANT’S SUBMISSION 
 

The appellant’s Agent (‘the Agent’) has submitted a supporting statement. The following 
comments are made in relation to their submission: 
 

• The Agent states that the proposed development ‘constitutes an "exceptional case" 
due to the site's unique location and topographical features’.  

 
Comment: The development proposed by this planning application is on a greenfield 
site. NPF4 Policy 9 clearly states that development proposals on greenfield sites will 

Page 161



not be supported unless the site has been allocated for development or the proposal 
is explicitly supported by policies in the LDP. The site is located within the ‘Countryside 
Zone’ as designated within the LDP, where LDP Policies LDP STRAT 1 and LDP DM 
1 give encouragement only to small scale development on appropriate infill, rounding-
off, redevelopment, and change of use of existing buildings. In exceptional cases, 
development in the open countryside up to and including large scale may be supported 
on appropriate sites if this accords with an Area Capacity Evaluation. In this case, the 
proposed site for a dwellinghouse would not represent an opportunity for infill, 
rounding-off, redevelopment, or the change of use of an existing building.  
 
With regard to ‘exceptional cases’, development in the open countryside up to and 
including large scale may occasionally be supported on appropriate sites, provided 
that the applicant has demonstrated a clear locational/operational requirement for the 
development and one which cannot be accommodated within the reasonable local 
vicinity of the proposed development site on a more suitable site within the settlement 
zone or in the less-sensitive countryside zone (the ‘Rural Opportunity Areas’). Where 
no such more appropriate development opportunity exists and where an applicant has 
successfully demonstrated an overriding ‘exceptional case’ for that development, such 
proposals are expected to accord with an ‘Area Capacity Evaluation’.  
 
The supporting information submitted advises that the majority of the farm work 
surrounding the application site is undertaken by a farm manager, and not the 
applicant. The information advises that both the applicant and the farm manager live 
within 3 miles of the proposed development site. The full extent of the agricultural 
holding was not disclosed until such a time as was requested by the Planning Authority; 
the subsequently submitted plans indicated that the agricultural holding includes a 
number of ‘Rural Opportunity Areas’ (areas less sensitive to the impacts of 
development). Only very limited information was submitted regarding existing farming 
practices around the proposed development site and there is no evidence to suggest 
that a dwellinghouse has to be tied to this precise location and could not be facilitated 
elsewhere within the wider agricultural holding. Indeed, the adopted Local 
Development Plan defines ‘Locational need’ as ‘a necessity for a proposed 
development to be located at or in close vicinity of the development site; ‘necessity’ in 
this context means more than ‘convenience’ and should directly relate to supporting 
the operations of a business and associated land or water use’. There is no suggestion 
that if the dwellinghouse were to be sited in an alternative, nearby location, such as 
within the adjacent ‘Rural Opportunity Areas’, that the farming activity would be 
jeopardised.  
 
The information provided indicates that the agricultural holding covers an area of 
approximately 91 hectares. The agricultural holding, under the ownership of the 
applicant, includes a number of ‘Rural Opportunity Areas’. The applicant was advised 
that there are other potential sites within the wider agricultural holding which would 
avoid the more sensitive ‘Countryside Zone’. This includes the designated ‘Rural 
Opportunity Areas’, which are sited approximately 40 metres to the south of the 
proposed development site and approximately 400 metres to the northeast of the 
proposed development site. The applicant was invited to appraise these sites, and 
responded by discounting all of the land within the ‘Rural Opportunity Areas’ for the 
reason that the ‘area would not be suitable for construction due to its exposure to harsh 
northerly and easterly winter winds’. The Planning Authority remain of the view that the 
‘Rural Opportunity Areas’, both immediately adjacent to the proposed application site, 
and 400 metres to the northeast of the site, could potentially present an opportunity for 
the proposed development and that no convincing argument has been put forward to 
discount these sites. The applicant has been strongly encouraged to investigate the 
development potential of a number of sites within these areas. The ‘Rural Opportunity 

Page 162



Area’ sited approximately 400 metres to the northeast of the application site is located 
adjacent to the B8071 public road and features a number of existing dwellinghouses. 
It is not therefore considered that this site is completely unsuitable for construction, 
based on the claimed exposure to winds and it is not therefore accepted that the ‘Rural 
Opportunity Areas’ are undevelopable. There has been no evidence submitted to 
discount development potential of specific sites within these areas and the submitted 
information does not tie the proposed development to a precise location.  

 

• The Agent states that whilst not formally adopted, the proposed Local Development 
Plan 2 forms a material planning consideration. The site the subject of the application 
is situated within the designated ‘Countryside Area’ where there is a presumption in 
favour of sustainable development where this is of an appropriate scale, design, siting 
and use for its countryside location. 
 
Comment: The proposed Local Development Plan 2 formed a material consideration 
in the determination of the planning application. The site the subject of the application 
is sited within the ‘Countryside Area’, where Policy 02 of the proposed Local 
Development Plan 2 provides a presumption in favour of sustainable development 
where this is of an appropriate scale, design, siting and use for its countryside location. 
In this case, the proposed dwellinghouse would be unacceptably large in both scale 
and massing, and the design would be inappropriate to the sensitive location, 
incongruous with the design, character and appearance of the built development that 
characterises the Isle of Coll. The siting of such a large scale dwellinghouse in this 
sensitive and exposed location would be unsustainable in terms of protecting the 
expansive landscapes which characterise this area of mid Coll. The siting, design and 
scale of the development would appear as insensitive and intrusive in this location, 
and the proposed development of this site would not therefore adhere to the 
requirements of the proposed Local Development Plan 2 Policy 02.  
 

• The Agent states that a holistic approach is required when assessing planning 
applications, and NPF4 Policies should not be isolated to justify planning decisions. 
The Agent further states that there has been inadequate consideration of material 
considerations. 
 
Comment: NPF4 Policy 9 is clear in stating that development proposals on greenfield 
sites will not be supported unless the site has been allocated for development or the 
proposal is explicitly supported by policies in the LDP. NPF4 Policy 14 is also clear in 
stating that development proposals that are poorly designed, detrimental to the 
amenity of the surrounding area or inconsistent with the six qualities of successful 
places, will not be supported. In this instance, the proposed development of a 
greenfield site is not supported by policies in the LDP, and the proposed design of the 
development would be unacceptably large in scale and massing and insensitive in 
terms of design. The application has been assessed against all relevant policies of 
NPF4, the adopted Local Development Plan and the proposed Local Development 
Plan 2 and is contrary to a range of key policies, as outlined above.  
 

• The Agent states that the proposed development would focus on sustainable 
development and ecological preservation. 
 
Comment: No information has been submitted to suggest that the proposed 
development would be sustainable, nor has any information been submitted to suggest 
that the proposed development would contribute to the ecological preservation of the 
area. Conversely, the proposed development site is located within an area designated 

Page 163



as a Site of Special Scientific Interest. NatureScot however, advised that it is unlikely 
that the integrity of the SSSI would be affected.  
 

• The Agent states that the proposed development would positively impact upon the 
local economy and address housing needs.  
 
Comment: Whilst the Planning Authority is keen to support local businesses and the 
reasonable aspirations of individuals, it is concluded in this case and after substantial 
effort to secure additional information, the case put forward by the applicant does not 
meet the ‘exceptional case’ criteria as the applicant’s need could be met from other 
sites in close proximity to the proposed development site and indeed within the wider 
agricultural landholding of the applicant. The proposed development does not 
constitute an ‘exceptional case’. There is no locational requirement for the proposed 
development to be tied to this exact location within the designated ‘Countryside Zone’ 
on a site that does not present any opportunities for infill, rounding-off, redevelopment 
or a change of use of an existing building. Whilst the applicant has put forward an 
‘exceptional case’, there is very limited established activity at this particular site within 
the wider landholding to potentially underpin a locational/operational need to justify the 
principle of the erection of a dwellinghouse at this specific location within the farm. 
Whilst it may be preferential and beneficial for the applicant to develop this particular 
site, the proposed case that has been forward by the applicant has not been backed 
up by sufficient evidence, despite such evidence having been requested. Additionally, 
the limited evidence provided does not suggest that the farming business would be 
jeopardised if the development were to be sited elsewhere within the farm holding in a 
less sensitive location.    
 

• The Agent states that a third party undertakes the day-to-day farm work, and that this 
person lives ‘a mere three miles’ from the site the subject of this application.  
 
Comment: The submitted information advises that the majority of the farm work 

surrounding the application site is undertaken by a farm manager, and not the 

applicant. Both the applicant and the farm manager live within 3 miles of the proposed 

development site. There has been no evidence to suggest that a dwellinghouse has to 

be tied to this precise location and could not be facilitated elsewhere within the wider 

landholding. There is no suggestion that if the dwellinghouse were to be sited in an 

alternative, nearby location, that the farming activity would be jeopardised.  

 

• The Agent states that the two farms operated by the applicant are located two miles 
apart, connected by a path. The Agent states that the farm around the application site 
is fully equipped with comprehensive livestock management facilities. The Agent 
further states that the proximity of the proposed development site to the existing sheep 
fank and electricity supply reduces the need for extensive infrastructure development.  
 
Comment: There is limited built development relating to the farm within the proximity 
of the proposed development site. There is a small agricultural building adjacent to the 
Ballyhaugh Hebridean Centre, however it is of a very small scale. The existing small 
scale agricultural building is sited within the ‘Rural Opportunity Area’. If the proposed 
dwellinghouse would be functionally associated with this existing infrastructure at the 
site, it is not apparent as to why the proposed dwellinghouse could not be located 
closer to the existing agricultural infrastructure and thereby also within the designated 
‘Rural Opportunity Area’. Despite numerous requests, neither the applicant nor the 
Agent sought to provide a sufficiently detailed site options appraisal. Instead, the site 
for the proposed dwellinghouse would appear as isolated and the scale would appear 
as incommensurate to the landscape setting.  

Page 164



 

• The Agent states that the proposed development site was selected so as to be away 
from the long established Ballyhaugh Hebridean Centre. The Agent further states that 
the location in a rocky area is ideally suited to the intended development and that the 
site is accessible via an existing access track.  

 
Comment: The site for the proposed dwellinghouse would not relate physically or 
functionally to existing buildings associated with the business. Neither would the 
proposed development reflect the pattern, density, design or appearance of built 
development in the wider area. Instead, the proposed development would appear as 
large and obtrusive to the extent that it would detrimentally impact upon the area. It is 
unclear how the rocky nature of the site would suit development and no details, such 
as existing and proposed site sections, were included with the submission; it is not 
therefore apparent how the development would be facilitated within the unfavourable 
rocky terrain of the proposed development site.  
 

• The Agent states that the design of the proposed dwellinghouse has been carefully 
selected to harmonise with the architectural style of the former farmhouse at 
Ballyhough. The Agent states that this would allow the development to integrate into 
the landscape.  
 
Comment: The indicative details submitted with the application show that the 
proposed dwellinghouse would be unacceptable in scale and massing meaning that 
the proposed dwellinghouse would appear as unduly prominent at the site, 
unsympathetic to the surrounding expansive open landscape. The proposed 
dwellinghouse would have a deep plan and shallow dual-pitched roof with wide dormer 
windows; this would not be reflective of local architectural styles and the development 
would thereby fail to integrate with the local vernacular, which is based on dwellings 
with a narrow linear plan, with the massing broken down into one and a half storey and 
single storey elements. The design of the proposed dwellinghouse would lack local 
character and would appear as suburban and wholly inappropriate to the sensitive rural 
location.  
 

• The Agent states that the proposal places emphasis on an energy-efficient 
dwellinghouse. 
 
Comment: No details have been submitted to suggest how the proposed 
dwellinghouse would place emphasis on energy efficiency. However, this would not be 
sufficient to override the fundamental key planning policy test for the Council’s 
established and adopted settlement strategy for the planned growth of Argyll and Bute 
as set out within Policy LDP DM 1 as supported by NPF4 Policy 9. The proposed 
development would not therefore accord with the sustainable development aims of the 
Council as established within adopted key planning Policy LDP STRAT 1 which 
underpins NPF4 Policy 14.  

 
 

CONCLUSION 
 
Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1997 (as amended) requires that all 
decisions be made in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise.  
 
In this case, as detailed in the Report of Handling appended to this submission, the site does 
not represent an appropriate opportunity for the erection of a dwellinghouse, and there has 

Page 165



been no sufficient or justifiable reason for the development to overcome the concerns outlined 
above. The proposed development is therefore confirmed as being contrary to National 
Planning Framework 4 Policies 9, 14, 15, 16, 17, 22, and 29 and Policies LDP DM 1, LDP 
STRAT 1, LDP 3, LDP 5, LDP 8, LDP 9, LDP 10 and LDP 11 and Supplementary Guidance 
SG LDP ENV 14, SG LDP ACE 1, SG LDP BUS 5, SG LDP HOU 1 and SG LDP SERV 6 of 
the Argyll and Bute Local Development Plan 2015.  
 
Taking account of the above, it is respectfully submitted that the application for Review be 
dismissed.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 166



APPENDIX A – REPORT OF HANDLING 
 

Argyll and Bute Council 
Development & Economic Growth   

 

Planning Application Report and Report of Handling as required by Schedule 2 of the 
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) 
Regulations 2013 relative to applications for Planning Permission or Planning 
Permission in Principle 
 

 
Reference No: 22/02078/PPP 
Planning Hierarchy: Local Development  
Applicant: Mr Allan  Brodie 
Proposal: Site for the erection of dwellinghouse to be used in association with 

farming business 
Site Address:  Land North Of Ballyhough Outdoor Centre, Isle of Coll 
  

  
DECISION ROUTE 
 

☒Delegated - Sect 43 (A) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 

 

☐Committee - Local Government Scotland Act 1973 

 

 
(A)  THE APPLICATION 
 

(i) Development Requiring Express Planning Permission 

• Site for the erection of dwellinghouse  

• Formation of access track  

• Connection to private water supply 

• Installation of private drainage system  
 
(ii) Other specified operations 

• None  
 

 
(B) RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Having due regard to the Development Plan and all other material considerations, it 
is recommended that planning permission in principle be refused for the reasons 
appended to this report. 
 

 
(C) CONSULTATIONS:   
 

 West of Scotland Archaeology Service 
Email dated 16.12.2022 commenting on the application and advising of no objections 
subject to conditions.  
 
Area Roads Authority 
Report dated 14.11.2022 advising of no objections subject to conditions.  
 

Page 167



Scottish Water 
Letter dated 14.11.2022 commenting on the application to advise that there is no 
Scottish Water infrastructure or Scottish Water waste water infrastructure within the 
vicinity of the proposed development site.  
 
NatureScot 
Letter dated 17.02.2023 commenting on the application.  
 
Animal Health and Welfare Officer 
Email dated 14.12.2022 supporting the application on the basis of operational need.  
 
Development Plan Policy 
No response at time of report and no request for an extension of time.  
 
The above represents a summary of the issues raised.  Full details of the consultation 
responses are available to view via the Public Access section of the Council’s 
website.   
 

 
(D) HISTORY:   
 

22/00595/PPP 
Site for the erection of dwellinghouse 
Refused on 18.08.2022 

 

 
(E) PUBLICITY:   
 

 The proposal has been advertised in terms of Regulation 20 and Neighbour 
Notification procedures, overall closing date 25.07.2023.  
 

 
(F) REPRESENTATIONS:   
 

(i) Representations received from: 
 

 No representations received.  
 

(ii) Summary of issues raised: 
 

• N/A 
 

 
(G) SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

Has the application been the subject of: 
 
(i) Environmental Impact Assessment Report: ☐Yes ☒No 

  
(ii) An Appropriate Assessment under the 

Conservation (Natural Habitats) Regulations 
1994:    

☐Yes ☒No 

  
(iii) A Design or Design/Access statement:    ☒Yes ☐No 

Page 168

https://publicaccess.argyll-bute.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application


 
The application has 
been submitted with a 
Planning Statement. 

  
(iv) A report on the impact of the proposed 

development eg. Retail impact, transport 
impact, noise impact, flood risk, drainage 
impact etc:   

☐Yes ☒No  

  

 
(H) PLANNING OBLIGATIONS 
 

Is a Section 75 agreement required:   ☐Yes ☒No  

  

 
(I) Has a Direction been issued by Scottish Ministers in terms of Regulation 30, 

31 or 32:  ☐Yes ☒No 

  

  
(J) Section 25 of the Act; Development Plan and any other material considerations 

over and above those listed above which have been taken into account in the 
assessment of the application 

 
(i)  List of all Development Plan Policy considerations taken into account 

in assessment of the application. 
 
National Planning Framework 4 (Adopted 13th February 2023) 

 
Part 2 – National Planning Policy 
 
Sustainable Places 
NPF4 Policy 1 – Tackling the Climate and Nature Crises 
NPF4 Policy 2 – Climate Mitigation and Adaption 
NPF4 Policy 3 – Biodiversity 
NPF4 Policy 4 – Natural Places 
NPF4 Policy 5 – Soils 
NPF4 Policy 7 – Historic Assets and Places 
NPF4 Policy 9 – Brownfield, Vacant and Derelict Land and Empty Buildings (includes 
provisions relevant to Greenfield Sites) 
NPF4 Policy 12 – Zero Waste 
NPF4 Policy 13 – Sustainable Transport 
 
Liveable Places 
NPF4 Policy 14 – Design, Quality and Place 
NPF4 Policy 15 – Local Living and 20 Minute Neighbourhoods 
NPF4 Policy 16 – Quality Homes 
NPF4 Policy 17 – Rural Homes 
NPF4 Policy 18 – Infrastructure First 
NPF4 Policy 22 – Flood Risk and Water Management 
 
Productive Places 
NPF4 Policy 29 – Rural Development 

 

Page 169

https://www.gov.scot/publications/national-planning-framework-4/pages/1/


 ‘Argyll and Bute Local Development Plan’ Adopted March 2015  
 
 LDP STRAT 1 – Sustainable Development 
 LDP DM 1 – Development within the Development Management Zones 
 LDP 3 – Supporting the Protection Conservation and Enhancement of our 
Environment 
 LDP 5 –Supporting the Sustainable Growth of our Economy 
 LDP 8 – Supporting the Strength of our Communities 
 LDP 9 – Development Setting, Layout and Design 
 LDP 10 – Maximising our Resources and Reducing our Consumption 
 LDP 11 – Improving our Connectivity and Infrastructure 

 
‘Supplementary Guidance to the Argyll and Bute Local Plan 2015’ (Adopted 
March 2016 & December 2016) 
 
Natural Environment 
 
SG LDP ENV 1 – Impact on Habitats, Species and our Biodiversity 
SG LDP ENV 4 – Impact on SSSIs and National Nature Reserves 
SG LDP ENV 11 – Protection of Soil and Peat Resources 
 
Landscape and Design 
 
SG LDP ENV 14 – Landscape 
SG LDP ACE 1 – Area Capacity Evaluation (ACE) 
 
Historic Environment and Archaeology 
 
SG LDP ENV 20 – Impact on Sites of Archaeological Importance 
 
Support for Business & Industry: General 
 
SG LDP BUS 5 – Economically Fragile Areas 

 
General Housing Development 
 
SG LDP HOU 1 – General Housing Development Including Affordable Housing 
Provision 

 
Sustainable Siting and Design 
 
SG LDP Sustainable – Sustainable Siting and Design Principles 
 
Resources and Consumption 
 
SG LDP SERV 1 – Private Sewage Treatment Plants & Wastewater Systems 
SG LDP SERV 2 – Incorporation of Natural Features / SuDS 
SG LDP SERV 5(b) – Provision of Waste Storage & Collection Facilities within New 
Development 
SG LDP SERV 6 – Private Water Supplies and Water Conservation 
SG LDP SERV 9 – Safeguarding Better Quality Agricultural Land 
 
Addressing Climate Change 
 
SG LDP Sust Check – Sustainability Checklist 

Page 170

https://www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/ldp
https://www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/sites/default/files/supplementary_guidance_adopted_march_2016_env_9_added_june_2016_ac2.pdf
https://www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/sites/default/files/supplementary_guidance_2_document_adopted_december_2016_3_ac3.pdf


 
Transport (Including Core Paths) 

 
SG LDP TRAN 2 – Development and Public Transport Accessibility 
SG LDP TRAN 4 – New & Existing, Public Roads & Private Access Regimes 
SG LDP TRAN 6 – Vehicle Parking Provision 

 
(ii)  List of all other material planning considerations taken into account in 

the assessment of the application, having due regard to Annex A of 
Circular 3/2013.  

 

• Consultation Reponses 

• Planning History 

• Argyll and Bute Sustainable Design Guidance, 2006 

• Isle of Coll Sustainable Design Guide  

• ABC Technical Note – Biodiversity (Feb 2017) 

• ABC draft Technical Note – Argyll and Bute Windows (April 2018) 
  

Argyll and Bute proposed Local Development Plan 2 (November 2019) – The 
Examination by Scottish Government Reporters to the Argyll and Bute Local 
Development Plan 2 has now concluded and the Examination Report has been 
published (13th June 2023). The Examination Report is a material consideration of 
significant weight and may be used as such until the conclusion of the LDP2 
Adoption Process. Consequently, the Proposed Local Development Plan 2 as 
recommended to be modified by the Examination Report and the published Non 
Notifiable Modifications is a material consideration in the determination of all 
planning and related applications. 

 
Spatial and Settlement Strategy 
 
Policy 02 – Outwith Settlement Areas 
Policy 04 – Sustainable Development 
 
High Quality Places 
 
Policy 05 – Design and Placemaking 
Policy 08 – Sustainable Siting 
Policy 09 – Sustainable Design 
Policy 10 – Design – All Development 
Policy 21 – Sites of Archaeological Importance 
 
Diverse and Sustainable Economy 
 
Policy 22 – Economic Development 
 
Connected Places 
 
Policy 35 – Design of New and Existing, Public Roads and Private Access Regimes 
Policy 36 – New Private Accesses 
Policy 39 – Construction Standards for Private Accesses 
Policy 40 – Vehicle Parking Provision 
 
Sustainable Communities 
 

Page 171

https://www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/sites/default/files/biodiversity_technical_note_feb_2017_4.pdf
https://www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s125560/Argyll%20Windows%20Technical%20Working%20Note%20Finalised%20Draft%20270318%2009042018%20Pre-Agenda%20Briefing%20of%20the%20.pdf
https://www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/ldp2
file:///C:/Users/bainp/Downloads/LDP-130-2%20Report%20of%20Examination.pdf


Policy 58 – Private Water Supplies and Water Conservation 
Policy 60 – Private Sewage Treatment Plants and Wastewater Drainage Systems 
Policy 61 – Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS) 
Policy 63 – Waste Related Development and Waste Management 

 
High Quality Environment 
 
Policy 73 – Development Impact on Habitats, Species and Biodiversity 
Policy 75 – Development Impact of Sites on Sites of Special Scientific Interest 
(SSSIs) 
Policy 79 – Protection of Soil and Peat Resources 
Policy 83 – Safeguarding Agricultural and Croft Land 

 

 
(K) Is the proposal a Schedule 2 Development not requiring an Environmental 

Impact Assessment:  ☐Yes ☒No 

  

  
(L) Has the application been the subject of statutory pre-application consultation 

(PAC):  ☐Yes ☒No 

 

 

(M) Has a Sustainability Checklist been submitted:  ☐Yes ☒No 

 

 

(N) Does the Council have an interest in the site:  ☐Yes ☒No 

 

 

(O) Requirement for a pre-determination hearing: ☐Yes ☒No 

  

  
(P)(i) Key Constraints/Designations Affected by the Development: 

•  Totamore Dunes and Loch Ballyhaugh Site of Special Scientific Interest  
 
(P)(ii) Soils 
Agricultural Land Classification: 
 

Unclassified Land 

Peatland/Carbon Rich Soils Classification: ☐Class 1 

☐Class 2 

☐Class 3 

☒Class 5 

☐N/A 

Peat Depth Classification: 1 metre 

  

Does the development relate to croft land? ☐Yes ☒No 

Would the development restrict access to croft 
or better quality agricultural land? 

☐Yes ☐No ☒N/A 

Would the development result in 
fragmentation of croft / better quality 
agricultural land? 

☐Yes ☐No ☒N/A 

 
(P)(iii) Woodland 
  

Page 172

http://maps.argyll-bute.gov.uk/arcgis/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=70daa5c752b24b80af2fe54f36c3e06f
http://maps.argyll-bute.gov.uk/arcgis/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=70daa5c752b24b80af2fe54f36c3e06f
http://maps.argyll-bute.gov.uk/arcgis/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=70daa5c752b24b80af2fe54f36c3e06f
http://maps.argyll-bute.gov.uk/arcgis/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=70daa5c752b24b80af2fe54f36c3e06f


Will the proposal result in loss of 
trees/woodland? 
 

☐Yes 

☒No 

 
Does the proposal include any replacement or 
compensatory planting? 

☐Yes 

☐No details to be secured by condition 

☒N/A 

  

(P)(iv) Land Status / LDP Settlement Strategy 
Status of Land within the Application 
 

☐Brownfield 

☐Brownfield Reclaimed by Nature 

☒Greenfield 

 
ABC LDP 2015 Settlement Strategy  
LDP DM 1  
 

☐Main Town Settlement Area 

☐Key Rural Settlement Area 

☐Village/Minor Settlement Area 

☐Rural Opportunity Area 

☒Countryside Zone 

☐Very Sensitive Countryside Zone 

☐Greenbelt 

ABC pLDP2 Settlement Strategy 
 
 

☐Settlement Area 

☒Countryside Area 

☐Remote Countryside Area 

☐Helensburgh & Lomond Greenbelt 

ABC LDP 2015 Allocations/PDAs/AFAs 
etc: 
 
N/A 

ABC pLDP2 Allocations/PDAs/AFAs 
etc: 
 
N/A 

 
(P)(v) Summary assessment and summary of determining issues and material 

considerations 
 

 Planning permission in principle is sought for the erection of a dwellinghouse on a 
plot of land to the north of Ballyhaugh, Isle of Coll.  
 
The application site comprises an area of undeveloped and open land. The site is 
located to the north of the long established Ballyhaugh Hebridean Centre and is 
accessed via a private unmade track spurring from the public B8071 road. The 
surrounding area is rural and undeveloped in character.  
 
An application for planning permission in principle at the site (our reference 
22/00595/PPP) was refused in August 2022. The application related to planning 
permission in principle for the erection of a dwellinghouse, and was refused as the 
site the subject of the application was within the ‘Countryside Zone’ as designated 
within the adopted Local Development Plan. The proposed development did not 
represent an appropriate opportunity for infill, rounding-off, redevelopment or the 
change of use of an existing building, nor was there an ‘exceptional case’. This 
current application now seeks consent for planning permission in principle for a 
dwellinghouse at the same site. The application has now been submitted with an 
‘exceptional case’ relating to the need for the development to support an agricultural 
business.  
 
This application is seeking planning permission in principle for a single 
dwellinghouse. The application has been submitted with indicative details of the 
proposed dwelling, including its siting within the plot, and indicative design details. 

Page 173



The purpose of this application is to establish the principle of development with the 
matters of layout and design to be addressed by way of future application(s) for 
approval of matters specified in conditions. 
 
NPF4 Policy 1 seeks to prioritise the climate and nature crises in all decisions; it 
requires to be applied together with other policies in NPF4. Guidance from the 
Scottish Government advises that it is for the decision maker to determine whether 
the significant weight to be applied tips the balance in favour for, or against a 
proposal on the basis of its positive or negative contribution to climate and nature 
crises.   
 
NPF4 Policy 2 seeks to ensure that new development proposals will be sited to 
minimise lifecycle greenhouse gas emissions as far as possible, and that proposals 
will be sited and designed to adapt to current and future risks from climate change. 
Guidance from the Scottish Government confirms that at present there is no single 
accepted methodology for calculating and / or minimising emissions. The emphasis 
is on minimising emissions as far as possible, rather than eliminating emissions. It is 
noted that the provisions of the Settlement Strategy set out within Policy LDP DM 1 
of the LDP promotes sustainable levels of growth by steering significant development 
to our Main Towns and Settlements, rural growth is supported through identification 
of Key Rural Settlements and safeguards more sensitive and vulnerable areas within 
its various countryside designations. 
 
NPF4 Policy 3 seeks to protect biodiversity, reverse biodiversity loss and deliver 
positive effects from development and strengthen nature networks. 
 
In the case of the development proposed by this application, it is considered that 
there are no issues of compliance with Policy 3. No material biodiversity impacts 
have been identified in the assessment of this application by the Planning Authority 
and whilst no specific proposals for biodiversity improvements have been submitted 
it is considered that adequate and proportionate measures for biodiversity 
enhancement and protection could be secured via planning condition in the event 
that planning permission in principle were to be granted. The proposed development 
is therefore considered to be in compliance with NPF4 Policy 3 as underpinned by 
Local Development Plan Policy LDP 3, supplementary guidance SG LDP ENV 1, and 
Policy 73 of the proposed Local Development Plan 2. 
 
NPF4 Policy 4 seeks to protect, restore and enhance natural assets making best 
use of nature-based solutions. 
 
The application site lies within the Totamore Dunes and Loch Ballyhaugh Site of 
Special Scientific Interest, designated for its extensive dune and machair system and 
vascular plant assemblage. NatureScot have been consulted on the application and 
have stated that there are natural heritage interests of national importance on the 
site, but these will not be affected by the proposal. The development site is located 
outside of the key machair and dune habitat in an area that is considered important, 
principally for the nationally-rare orchid, Irish lady’s tresses (Spiranthes 
romanzoffiana). This plant’s preferred habitat is wet grassy places such as marshy 
meadows. The development site is not the preferred habitat and the records from 
NatureScot do not show any sightings closer than 50m from the proposed 
development site, therefore it is unlikely that the integrity of the Site of Special 
Scientific Interest would be affected by the proposed development. In the event that 
planning permission in principle were to be granted, a suitable condition could be 
attached to ensure that the storage of all building materials and associated 
equipment were to be within the boundary of the application site, thereby ensuring 

Page 174



any disturbance would be contained within the plot boundary. The proposed 
development is considered to be in accordance with NPF4 Policy 4 as underpinned 
by Local Development Plan Policy LDP 3, supplementary guidance SG LDP ENV 1 
and SG LDP ENV 4, and Policy 75 of the proposed Local Development Plan 2.  
  
NPF4 Policy 5 seeks to protect carbon-rich soils, to restore peatlands and to 
minimise disturbance to soils from development. 
 
The development proposed by the current planning application seeks to develop an 
area of rough undeveloped ground. Whilst no evidence has been submitted by the 
applicant to suggest that the site would avoid the better quality agricultural land within 
the holding, the site itself has no agricultural land classification and is not within an 
identified area of peatland, carbon-rich soils or priority peatland habitat. The 
development proposed is therefore considered to be in accordance with NPF4 Policy 
5 as underpinned by Local Development Plan Policy LDP 3, supplementary guidance 
SG LDP ENV 11 and SG LDP SERV 9, and Policies 79 and 83 of the proposed Local 
Development Plan 2.  
 
NPF4 Policy 7 seeks to protect and enhance historic environment assets and places, 
and to enable positive change as a catalyst for the regeneration of places.  
 
The site the subject of the application lies within an area of archaeological sensitivity, 
with the potential for the site to feature buried archaeological remains. Additionally, 
the sites lies approximately 250 metres to the east of, and in full view from, An 
Caisteal, a prehistoric fort. The consultation response received from the West of 
Scotland Archaeology Service advises that the proposal would have a minor 
detrimental impact upon its landscape setting, however the prehistoric fort does not 
form a Scheduled Ancient Monument. The consultation response further states that 
the proposed development is of such a scale that ground disturbance could reveal 
buried archaeological remains. In the case of this application, a suitable condition 
could be attached to secure an archaeological watching brief in the event that 
planning permission in principle were to be granted. In this regard, the development 
would adhere to the requirements of NPF4 Policy 7(o) as underpinned by LDP Policy 
LDP 9, supplementary guidance SG LDP ENV 20, and Policy 21 of the proposed 
Local Development Plan 2, which seek to protect and preserve non-designated 
historic environment assets, places and their setting.  
 
NPF4 Policy 9 seeks to encourage, promote and facilitate the reuse of brownfield, 
vacant and derelict land and empty buildings, and to help reduce the need for 
greenfield development. 
 
The development proposed by this planning application is on a greenfield site. The 
site is located within the ‘Countryside Zone’ as designated within the Local 
Development Plan, where LDP Policies LDP STRAT 1 and LDP DM 1 give 
encouragement only to small scale development on appropriate infill, rounding-off, 
redevelopment, and change of use of existing buildings. In exceptional cases, 
development in the open countryside up to and including large scale may be 
supported on appropriate sites if this accords with an Area Capacity Evaluation. In 
the case of this application, the proposed site for a dwellinghouse would not 
represent an opportunity for infill, rounding-off, redevelopment, or the change of use 
of an existing building.  
 
With regard to ‘exceptional cases’, development in the open countryside up to and 
including large scale may occasionally be supported on appropriate sites, provided 
that the applicant has demonstrated a clear locational/operational requirement for 

Page 175



the development and one which cannot be accommodated within the reasonable 
local vicinity of the proposed development site on a more suitable site within the 
settlement zone or in the less-sensitive countryside zone (the ‘Rural Opportunity 
Areas’). Where no such more appropriate development opportunity exists and where 
an applicant has successfully demonstrated an overriding ‘exceptional case’ for that 
development, such proposals are expected to accord with an ‘Area Capacity 
Evaluation’.  
 
SG LDP ACE 1 states that “The ‘exceptional case’ required to justify carrying out of 
an ACE is in all circumstances, either; the demonstration of a locational and/or 
operational need tied to a precise location which is agreed with and acceptable to 
the council, or; demonstration of an overriding economic or community benefit which 
outweighs other policies of the Local Development Plan and is agreed with and 
acceptable to the council.” In order for a development to qualify as an exceptional 
case, the following principles can be applied: 
 

• Exceptional cases should be fairly rare occurrences and should not become 
a matter of routine; 

 

• Exceptional cases should be supported with a business development 
plan/reasoned statement of justification; 

 

• Specific locational requirement – i.e. if it’s not there, then it can’t happen 
anywhere else; 

 

• Or that it directly supports an existing business whose continued operation 
would be jeopardised without the proposed development. 

 
The application site is a prominent area of open and gently undulating land slightly 
elevated above the Ballyhaugh Hebridean Centre. The site is located in mid Coll, 
which is characterised by open landscapes. There are long views across the 
distinctive open landscape and the existing settlement pattern is sparse. The Isle of 
Coll Landscape Capacity for New Housing Report states that the existing built 
development at Ballyhaugh acts as a point feature, where its scale suits the open 
landscape in which it sits. The landscape study does not recognise the site the 
subject of the current application as one within which there is capacity for new 
residential development and it is considered that the introduction of a dwelling within 
this location would not be cohesive with the landscape or settlement pattern and 
would not integrate with the character of the surrounding area. The dwelling would 
appear as unduly prominent and would therefore have a significant adverse impact 
upon the setting, and would unacceptably alter the existing settlement density of the 
area. 
 
The applicant has put forward a justification for the proposed development in an 
attempt to justify that this application represents an appropriate ‘exceptional case’ 
based on a locational/operational need for the development to be located upon this 
greenfield site within the designated ‘Countryside Zone’. This justification is 
summarised as follows: 
 

• The proposed development of the site with a dwellinghouse is required by the 
applicant based on a locational/operational need; 

 

• The applicant and the farm manager live two and three miles away from the 
application site at Ballyhaugh respectively. The farm at Ballyhaugh is 

Page 176



currently run as a satellite farm to Ballard Farm, which is sited two miles away 
from the application site;  

 

• The applicant requires the dwellinghouse to support the agricultural activity 
at the site, which comprises breeding sheep and cattle, on the 91 hectare 
site.  The accommodation is required to support the agricultural activity at the 
site and address the lack of any available nearby housing.  

 
The Council’s Animal Health and Welfare Officer has been consulted on the 
application. The submitted Labour Report has been assessed and the consultation 
response supports the application on the basis of operational need. The Council’s 
Animal Health and Welfare Officer makes reference to the current farmer 
approaching retirement age and their association with an existing substantial farm,  
which is stated to make sufficient demands on his time. Whilst this is acknowledged, 
it is noted within the supporting information submitted by the applicant that the 
majority of the farm work surrounding the application site is undertaken by a farm 
manager, and not the applicant. The response from the Council’s Animal Health and 
Welfare Officer, in this case, does not acknowledge that both the applicant and the 
farm manager live within 3 miles of the proposed development site, nor is it 
acknowledged that there may be other suitable sites for development within the 
landholding. Whilst the application is supported by the Council’s Animal Health and 
Welfare Officer on the basis of operational need, there is no suggestion that the 
dwellinghouse associated with the farm has to be tied to this precise location, and 
could not be facilitated elsewhere within the landholding. There is also no suggestion 
that if the dwelling were to be sited in an alternative, nearby location, that the farming 
activity would be jeopardised.  
 
In consideration of the claim of an exceptional case based upon a 
locational/operational need, the evidence submitted is somewhat vague. The 
information provided with the application indicates that the agricultural holding covers 
an area of approximately 91 hectares, with both the applicant and the farm manager 
living within three miles of the proposed development site. The agricultural holding, 
under the ownership of the applicant, includes a number of ‘Rural Opportunity Areas’. 
The applicant has been advised that there are other potential sites within the wider 
agricultural holding which would avoid the more sensitive ‘Countryside Zone’, such 
as within the designated ‘Rural Opportunity Areas’, including immediately to the 
south and west of the site, and approximately 400 metres to the northeast. The 
applicant has discounted these sites for the following stated reason: 
 

• The area would not be suitable for construction due to its exposure to harsh 
northerly and easterly winter winds. The site’s elevated position would 
exacerbate this issue.  

 
Notwithstanding this, the Planning Authority remain of the view that the ‘Rural 
Opportunity Areas’, both immediately adjacent to the proposed application site, and 
400 metres to the northeast of the site, could potentially present an opportunity for 
the proposed development and that no convincing argument has been put forward 
to discount these sites. The applicant has been strongly encouraged to investigate 
development potential of a number of sites within these areas. The ‘Rural Opportunity 
Area’ sited approximately 400 metres to the northeast of the application site is 
located adjacent to the B8071 public road and features a number of existing 
dwellinghouses. It is not therefore considered that this site is completely unsuitable 
for construction, based on the claimed exposure to winds. It is not therefore accepted 
that the ‘Rural Opportunity Areas’ are undevelopable. There has been no evidence 
submitted to discount development potential of specific sites within these areas.  

Page 177



 
Whilst the Planning Authority is keen to support local businesses and the reasonable 
aspirations of individuals, it is concluded in this case and after substantial effort to 
secure additional information, the case put forward by the applicant does not meet 
the ‘exceptional case’ criteria as the applicant’s need could be met from other sites 
in close proximity to the proposed development site and indeed within the wider 
agricultural landholding of the applicant. The proposed development does not 
constitute an ‘exceptional case’. There is no locational requirement for the proposed 
development to be sited within the designated ‘Countryside Zone’ on a site that does 
not present any opportunities for infill, rounding-off, redevelopment or a change of 
use of an existing building. Whilst the applicant has put forward an ‘exceptional case’, 
there is very limited established activity at this particular site within the wider 
landholding to potentially underpin a locational/operational need to justify the 
principle of the erection of a dwellinghouse at this specific location within the farm. 
Whilst it may be preferential and beneficial for the applicant to develop this particular 
site, the proposed case that has been forward by the applicant has not been backed 
up by sufficient evidence, despite such evidence having been requested. 
Additionally, the limited evidence provided does not suggest that the farming 
business would be jeopardised if the development were to be sited elsewhere within 
the farm holding in a less sensitive location.    
 
The proposed site does not present any opportunities for small scale development 
on appropriate infill, rounding off and redevelopment sites and changes of use of 
existing buildings. The proposed development does not constitute an ‘exceptional 
case’ which would warrant the undertaking of an Area Capacity Evaluation which 
could potentially allow the Planning Authority to support development on appropriate 
sites where the development accords with the Area Capacity Evaluation.  
 
With regard to the proposed Local Development Plan 2, the application site is located 
within an area designated as ‘Countryside Area’ where there is a presumption in 
favour of sustainable development where this is of an appropriate scale, design, 
siting and use for its countryside location. In the case of this application, the indicative 
scale and design of the proposed dwelling would be incongruous with the design, 
character and appearance of the built development that characterises the Isle of Coll. 
Moreover, the siting of such a large scale dwelling in this sensitive and exposed 
location would be unsustainable in terms of protecting the expansive landscapes 
which characterise this area of mid Coll. The siting, design and scale of the 
development would appear as insensitive and intrusive in this location, and the 
proposed development of this site would not therefore adhere to the requirements of 
the proposed Local Development Plan 2 Policy 02.  
 
As outlined above, the proposed development, on a greenfield site, would be contrary 
to NPF4 Policy 9(b), which requires development proposals on greenfield sites to be 
explicitly supported by policies in the Local Development Plan. The development 
would thereby fail to achieve the policy outcome aims which require development to 
be sited within an appropriate location to maximise the use of existing assets and 
minimise additional land take.  
 
NPF4 Policy 12 seeks to encourage, promote and facilitate development that is 
consistent with the waste hierarchy as defined within the policy document. 
 
The development the subject of this planning application seeks planning permission 
in principle for the erection of a single dwellinghouse. This is a development likely to 
generate waste when operational. Whilst no details have been provided regarding 
the proposed management of waste from the site, such details could be secured via 

Page 178



condition in the event that planning permission in principle were to be granted. In this 
regard, the proposed development is considered to be in compliance with NPF4 
Policy 12(c) as underpinned by LDP Policy LDP 10, supplementary guidance SG 
LDP SERV 5(b), and Policy 63 of the proposed Local Development Plan 2.  
 
NPF4 Policy 13 seeks to encourage, promote and facilitate developments that 
prioritise walking, wheeling, cycling and public transport for everyday travel and 
reduce the need to travel unsustainably.  
 
The development the subject of this planning application seeks to establish the 
principle of a new single dwellinghouse.  The application proposes to construct a new 
private access track connecting to the existing private access track spurring from the 
B8071 public road. The Area Roads Authority have been consulted on the application 
and raised no objections to the proposed development subject to conditions 
regarding the upgrade of the access at the junction with the public road, the 
clearance and maintenance of visibility splays, the provision of a system or surface 
water drainage, the provision of a parking and turning area, and the provision of a 
bin store area. Subject to such details being secured via condition in the event that 
planning permission in principle were to be granted, the proposal is compliant with 
the terms of NPF4 Policy 13 as underpinned by Local Development Plan Policy LDP 
11, supplementary guidance SG LDP TRAN 2, SG LDP TRAN 4 and SG LDP TRAN 
6, and the relevant policies of the proposed Local Development Plan 2, which 
collectively seek to ensure that developments are served by a safe means of 
vehicular access and have an appropriate parking and turning area within the site.  
 
NPF4 Policy 14 seeks to encourage, promote and facilitate well designed 
development that makes successful places by taking a design-led approach and 
applying the ‘Place Principle’. 
 
NPF4 Policy 14(c) states that development proposals that are poorly designed, 
detrimental to the amenity of the surrounding area or inconsistent with the six 
qualities of successful place will not be supported. In this instance, whilst the 
application is seeking planning permission in principle, indicative details of the siting 
and design of the dwelling have been submitted. As per the indicative plans, the 
proposed dwelling would have a large footprint, covering an area of approximately 
156 square metres. The large massing of the dwelling would appear as unduly 
prominent at the site, unsympathetic to the surrounding expansive open landscape. 
The development would therefore have a significant impact upon the setting, being 
a large property that would impact upon the existing property at Ballyhaugh and the 
surrounding landscape. The massing of the proposed development is also 
considered to be inappropriate; the dwelling would have a deep plan and shallow 
dual-pitched roof with wide dormer windows. This would further exacerbate the 
adverse impact upon the setting of the proposed development site. The development 
would fail to integrate with the local vernacular, which is based on dwellings with a 
narrow linear plan, with the massing broken down into one and a half storey and 
single storey elements. The proposed dormer windows upon the principal elevation 
would be over scaled and would dominate the roof of which they would form a part 
of. The indicative design of the proposed dwelling would lack local character and in 
this regard would appear as suburban and inappropriate to the rural location. Whilst 
it is acknowledged that the exact details of the design of the proposed dwellinghouse 
could be secured via condition, to be addressed by way of future application(s) for 
approval of matters specified in conditions, the inappropriate design indicates that 
there has been insufficient regard to the character and appearance of the immediate 
and wider surroundings of the application site.  
 

Page 179



In addition to the above, however, it is important to note that the impact of the 
proposed development upon the landscape and character of the surrounding area is 
not the sole determining factor in the consideration of this application. Regardless of 
any interpretation of the impact of the proposed development upon the landscape, 
the development does not meet the fundamental key planning policy test for the 
Council’s established and adopted settlement strategy for the planned growth of 
Argyll and Bute as set out within Policy LDP DM 1. Neither, therefore, does the 
proposed development accord with the sustainable development aims of the Council 
as established within adopted key planning Policy LDP STRAT 1 which underpins 
NPF4 Policy 14.  
 
The proposed development fails to pay regard to the wider surroundings of the site 
in terms of connectivity, the existing character, scale and density, and views. The 
site is open and exposed and the proposed development would be incompatible with 
the existing character of the area, and is therefore contrary to Policies 05, 08, 09 and 
10 of the proposed Local Development Plan 2.  
 
NPF4 Policy 15 seeks to encourage, promote and facilitate the application of the 
Place Principle and create connected and compact neighbourhoods where people 
can meet the majority of their daily needs within a reasonable distance of their home.  
 
In terms of the adopted settlement strategy, the site of the proposed development is 
within the ‘Countryside Zone’ where LDP Policies LDP STRAT 1 and LDP DM 1 give 
encouragement only to small scale development on appropriate infill, rounding-off, 
redevelopment sites, or changes of use of existing buildings. The proposed 
development site would fail to respect the existing established settlement pattern and 
in this regard the development would fail to connect with any existing neighbourhood 
or settlement. The proposal would therefore fail to meet the requirements of NPF4 
Policy 15 as underpinned by the settlement strategy policy contained within Policies 
LDP DM 1, LDP 8, LDP 10 and LDP 11 of the Local Development Plan. 
 
NPF4 Policy 16 seeks to encourage, promote and facilitate the delivery of more high 
quality, affordable and sustainable homes in the right locations and providing choice 
of tenure to meet diverse housing needs. 
 
NPF4 Policy 16(f) states that development proposals for new homes on land not 
allocated for housing in the LDP will only be supported in limited circumstances 
where: 
 

i) the proposal is supported by an agreed timescale for build-out; and  
 
ii) the proposal is otherwise consistent with the plan spatial strategy and 

other relevant policies including local living and 20 minute 
neighbourhoods 

 
iii) and either: 

 

• delivery of sites is happening earlier than identified in the deliverable housing 
land pipeline. This will be determined by reference to two consecutive years 
of the Housing Land Audit evidencing substantial delivery earlier than pipeline 
timescales and that general trend being sustained; or 

 

• the proposal is consistent with policy on rural homes; or 
 

Page 180



• the proposal is for smaller scale opportunities within an existing settlement 
boundary; or  

 

• the proposal is for the delivery of less than 50 affordable homes as part of a 
local authority supported affordable housing plan. 

 
In the case of this application, whilst the timescale for build-out could be secured via 
condition to be addressed by way of future application(s) for approval of matters 
specified in conditions, the application site is not consistent with the local 
development plan spatial strategy or other relevant policies. The development of the 
site the subject of this application is directly contrary to the local development plan 
spatial strategy. The proposed development is therefore considered to be 
inconsistent with NPF4 Policy 16 as underpinned by Local Development Plan 
Policies LDP DM 1 and LDP 8 and supplementary guidance SG LDP HOU 1. 
 
NPF4 Policy 17 seeks to encourage, promote and facilitate the delivery of more high 
quality, affordable and sustainable rural homes in the right locations. 
 
The development the subject of this planning application is located within a defined 
‘remote rural area’ where Policy 17(c) offers support only where such proposals: 
 

i. Support and sustain existing fragile communities; 
 

ii. Support identified local housing outcomes; and 
 

iii. Are suitable in terms of location, access and environmental impact.  
 
The proposed development seeks planning permission in principle for a single 
dwellinghouse. It is acknowledged that the proposed development would contribute 
to housing for the existing local community, however there has been no overriding 
evidence to suggest that the dwelling could not be sited elsewhere within the 
applicant’s wider agricultural holding in less sensitive and more sustainable 
locations. Nor has there been any evidence provided to suggest that if the dwelling 
were to be sited elsewhere, the existing farming activity would be jeopardised. It is 
not therefore considered that the proposed development would offer any overriding 
opportunity to sustain the existing community. In addition, as outlined above, the 
siting of the development is considered unsustainable due to its prominent location 
and the resulting impact upon the sensitive and vulnerable isolated landscape. The 
proposed development would therefore be contrary to the aims of NPF4 Policy 17 as 
underpinned by Local Development Plan Policy LDP DM 1.  
 
NPF4 Policy 18 seeks to encourage, promote and facilitate an infrastructure first 
approach to land use planning. 
 
The development the subject of this planning application proposes a private drainage 
system and connection to the public water supply network. As the application is 
seeking planning permission in principle, only indicative details of the proposed 
drainage arrangements have been submitted with the application, with these being 
subject of approval through a further planning application(s). With a condition to 
secure the details of the proposed private drainage system, the proposal is 
considered to be consistent with the broad aims of NPF4 Policy 18 as underpinned 
by Local Development Plan Policies LDP 11, supplementary guidance SG LDP 
SERV 1, and Policy 60 of the proposed Local Development Plan 2.  
 

Page 181



NPF4 Policy 22 seeks to strengthen resilience to flood risk and to ensure that water 
resources are used efficiently and sustainably. 
 
The development the subject of this planning application proposes connection to the 
public water supply network. Scottish Water have been consulted on the application 
and have stated that whilst there is no objection to the application, there is no public 
Scottish Water water infrastructure within the vicinity of the proposed development 
site. The applicant has not demonstrated that water for drinking water purposes will 
be sourced from a sustainable water source that is resilient to periods of water 
scarcity. In this regard, the proposal would directly fail to meet the requirements of 
NPF4 Policy 22 as underpinned by LPD Policies LDP 10 and LDP 11, supplementary 
guidance SG LDP SERV 6, and Policy 58 of the proposed Local Development Plan 
2, which seek to ensure the efficient and sustainable use of water resources.  
 
NPF4 Policy 29 seeks to encourage rural economic activity, innovation and 
diversification whilst ensuring that the distinctive character of the rural area and the 
service function of small towns, natural assets and cultural heritage are safeguarded 
and enhanced.  
 
NPF4 Policy 29(a) offers support to development proposals that contribute to the 
viability, sustainability and diversity of rural communities and the local rural economy. 
This includes support for farms, crofts and other land use businesses. However, 
NPF4 Policy 29 also requires such developments to accord with the spatial strategy 
outlined within the local development plan. In the case of this application, whilst the 
siting of a dwellinghouse at the application site may be preferential and beneficial for 
the applicant, the ‘exceptional case’ presented does not provide sufficient evidence 
to support an overriding locational need to have the development at this specific site. 
The development would therefore fail to comply with this aspect of NPF4 Policy 29. 
 
With regard to NPF4 Policy 29(c), development proposals in remote rural areas, 
where new development can often help to sustain fragile communities, will be 
supported where the proposal:  
 

i. will support local employment; 
 
ii. supports and sustains existing communities, for example through 

provision of digital infrastructure; and  
 

iii. is suitable in terms of location, access, siting, design and environmental 
impact 

 
In the case of this application, it is acknowledged that the siting of a dwellinghouse 
at the application site may be preferential and beneficial for the applicant to support 
the existing agricultural activity. However, there is insufficient supporting justification 
to suggest that the development is required in this exact location. In this regard, the 
contribution of the proposed development to supporting local employment and the 
existing community would appear to be limited. The information provided with the 
application advises that those associated with the agricultural business live no more 
than 3 miles from the proposed development site. Notwithstanding this, discussions 
have been undertaken with the applicant in an attempt to find alternative provision 
for the siting of a dwellinghouse within reasonable proximity to the claimed 
agricultural activity. The suggested development sites are in locations within the 
applicant’s ownership and on sites that would accord with the adopted settlement 
strategy. However, in response to such requests for considerations of alternative 
sites for the proposed development, there has been minimal analysis of other 

Page 182



potential development sites, with the applicant stating that all other sites would be 
unsuitable for development due to their exposure. This is disputed as at least one of 
the potential development areas features a number of existing dwellinghouses.  
 
As previously outlined, the proposed development site is unsuitable in terms of 
location due its undeveloped nature and its sensitivity to inappropriate development 
that would fail to protect or conserve the important landscape characteristics of the 
wider area. The proposed development would not therefore adhere to the 
requirements of NPF4 Policy 29 as underpinned by Local Development Plan Policies 
LDP 3, LDP 5, LDP 8 and LDP 9, supplementary guidance SG LDP BUS 5, and 
Policy 22 of the proposed Local Development Plan 2.   
 
Notwithstanding the above requirements of NPF4 Policy 29, this application for 
planning permission in principle for the development of the site with the erection of a 
dwellinghouse and associate services would represent an inappropriate form of 
development within the ‘Countryside Zone’ designation which would be detrimental 
to the character and appearance of the wider landscape and contrary to the policies 
set out within the National Planning Framework 4 and the adopted Local 
Development Plan and associated supplementary guidance.   
 
There is sufficient alignment in the assessment of the proposal against both 
provisions of the current Local Development Plan and the Proposed Local 
Development Plan 2 (as modified) that a decision can be made under the current 
development plan without giving rise to fundamental conflict with PLDP2 (as 
modified). 

 

 

(Q) Is the proposal consistent with the Development Plan: ☐Yes ☒No  

 

 
(R) Reasons why Planning Permission or Planning Permission in Principle Should 

be Granted: 
 

  See reasons for refusal set out below.  
 

 
(S) Reasoned justification for a departure to the provisions of the Development 

Plan 
 

 N/A 
 

 
(T) Need for notification to Scottish Ministers or Historic Environment Scotland: 

☐Yes ☒No  

 

 
Author of Report: Emma Shaw Date: 07.09.2023 
 
Reviewing Officer: Tim Williams Date: 12.09.2023 
 
Fergus Murray 
Head of Development & Economic Growth 

 

Page 183



This page is intentionally left blank



1

McCallum, Fiona

From: Kerr, David
Sent: 05 January 2024 14:48
To: McCallum, Fiona
Subject: FW: Intimation of Receipt of Notice of Review - Reference 23/0009/LRB (Planning 

Ref: 22/02078/PPP - Land North of Ballyhaugh Outdoor Centre, Isle of Coll, PA78 
6TB [OFFICIAL]

“Hi Fiona 

I’m not sure about the areas of contention that affect me in this one.  I’d say there is a reasonable case for 
operational need with and agricultural restriction.  Mr Brodie is getting older and I can sympathise with his urge 
to have a young couple on site who can probably be used on his main farm business as well. 

Let me know what areas you want me to concentrate on.  Keen to help you. 

David “. 

I hope this helps. 

David 

Page 185



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a Notice of Review and Supporting Documentation
	Planning Statement Labour Report Comm Plan_Redacted
	Correspondence with agent_Redacted
	Consultations
	Consultee Responses
	Adverts
	ROH and Decision Notice_Redacted
	Plans
	Site Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2 (8)




	3b Comments from Interested Parties
	Animal Health Welfare Officer




